
AGENDA PAPERS FOR
STOCKPORT, TRAFFORD AND ROCHDALE (STAR) JOINT 

COMMITTEE MEETING
Date: Monday, 13 April 2015

Time:  2.00 pm

Place:  Meeting Room 12, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, M32 0TH

A G E N D A  PART I Pages 

1. ATTENDANCES  

To note attendances, including Officers and any apologies for absence.

2. MINUTES  

To receive and if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 20 January 2015. 1 - 4

3. PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK - CORPORATE REPORTS  

To consider the following reports of the Director of STaR Shared 
Procurement.

(a)  Revenue Budget Monitor Report - Period 11  5 - 6

(b)  2015/16 Budget  7 - 8

(c)  Human Resources - Statistics  9 - 10

(d)  Risk Register  11 - 12

4. PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK - MILESTONE REPORTS  

To consider the following reports of the Director of STaR Shared 
Procurement.

(a)  Harmonised Contract Procedure Rules - Recommendation for approval  13 - 56

Public Document Pack



Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STaR) Joint Committee - Monday, 13 April 
2015

(b)  Public Contract Regulations 2015  57 - 68

(c)  STaR Activity and Business Improvement Plan  69 - 74

5. BALANCED SCORE CARD  

To consider a report of the Director of STaR Shared Procurement. 75 - 82

6. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)  

Any other item or items which by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified), the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be  
considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency.

7. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  

To confirm the arrangements for the next meeting.

THERESA GRANT
Chief Executive

Membership of the Committee

Councillors A. Brett (Chairman), P. Myers and I. Roberts (Vice-Chairman)

Further Information
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact:

Chris Gaffey, Democratic and Scrutiny Officer.
Tel: 0161 912 2019
Email: chris.gaffey@trafford.gov.uk 

This agenda was issued on Wednesday 1 April by the Legal and Democratic Services 
Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford, M32 0TH.

Any person wishing to photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to 
inform Democratic Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the 
meeting.

Please contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if 
you intend to do this or have any queries.



1

ITEM 1 PREVIOUS MINUTES

STOCKPORT, TRAFFORD AND ROCHDALE (STAR) JOINT COMMITTEE

20 JANUARY 2015

PRESENT 

Councillor A. Brett (Rochdale) (in the Chair).
Councillors P. Myers (Trafford) and I. Roberts (Stockport) (Vice-Chairman)

In attendance

S. Robson - Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement)
J. Le Fevre Director of Legal and Democratic Services (Trafford)
S. Houston - Director of Corporate and Support Services (Stockport)
I. Duncan - Director of Finance (Trafford)
P. Kane - Director of Finance (Rochdale)
N. Owen - Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 

6. MINUTES 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STaR) 
Joint Committee meeting held on 1st October 2014 be agreed as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman.

7. JOINT COMMITTEE CONSTITUTION UPDATE - GOVERNANCE UPDATE 

At the previous meeting the Joint Committee considered a report on the 
Constitution and asked for clarification about how scrutiny would work in practice.

The Director of Legal and Democratic Services (Trafford) informed the Committee 
that any key decisions taken by them would need to be published.  Trafford 
Council would prepare the notices and Stockport and Rochdale Councils would 
provide links to the notice.  The notices would be published by Trafford Council.  
The Committee were also informed that each Council had call in rules that were 
broadly similar and Trafford Council would prepare and publish a decision notice 
for any decisions and share with Stockport and Rochdale who would publish the 
notice via a weblink.

The decision would then be subject to call-in by each of the Council’s in 
accordance with their procedures, if there is no call-in from any of the Councils, 
then the decision can be implemented.  If any Council calls-in the decision, then 
they follow their internal processes.  Any matters referred back would be 
reconsidered by the Joint Committee at its next meeting or a special meeting.  If a 
decision is called-in by one Council, the decision could not be implemented until 
that Council had followed their internal call-in process.

Members were informed that substitute members needed to be appointed in the 
same method that their respective Committee member was appointed and that the 
substitute members had to be Executive members.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STaR) Joint Committee 
20 January 2015

2

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
8. CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES UPDATE REPORT 

The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) submitted a report to 
the Committee.  The report outlined the Consultation Process regarding the 
proposed harmonised Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) and the 
feedback/concerns which had been received.

The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) asked the Committee to 
consider deferring the final ratification of the proposed CPRs until their meeting 
scheduled for April 2015.  This would allow time to address all the issues raised 
and ensure that the revised CPRs are effective.

Actions were detailed in the report as to how the issues would be addressed.

In particular, it was acknowledged that to move to a £25,000 threshold for open 
advertising of all procurement opportunities would present challenges.

RESOLVED: That the ratification of the proposed CPRs be deferred until 
the meeting of the Joint Committee in April.

9. PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK - CORPORATE REPORTS

(a) Budget Monitoring Report and 2015/16 Budget 

The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) submitted a report 
outlining the STaR Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 – Period 8 (April 2014 – 
Nov 2014 inclusive). 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(b) Human Resources - Statistics 

The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) submitted a report 
outlining HR statistics (regarding absences and starters/leavers) and workforce 
matters.  The report also highlighted the training plan put in place for STaR 
employees.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(c) Risk Register 

The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) submitted a report 
regarding the risk register.

The report highlighted that communication regarding STaR needed to be improved 
as not all potential clients were not aware of STaR and the services it provides.  
The report also noted that considerable progress had been made regarding the 
population of the contracts register but that further focus on this area would 
continue.

Page 2



Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STaR) Joint Committee 
20 January 2015

3

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

10. PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK - MILESTONE REPORTS

(a) The Transparency Code 2014 Implementation Update 

The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) submitted a report 
updating the committee on implementing the Transparency Code 2014 – 
Procurement Related Requirements.

It was noted that all three Councils were progressing well with compliance to the 
Code.

With regard to Invitations to Tender over £5,000, STaR Councils will provide a link 
to The Chest (the online advertising portal) so all information can be viewed “live”.  
Stockport and Trafford Councils’ link is now established and Rochdale’s link will be 
in place by end of January 2015.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(b) Policy Update - Greater Manchester Combined Authority Social Value 
Policy and Framework 

The Committee was informed that a GM Framework has been established through 
joint working of procurement leads including representatives from STaR, 
Manchester, Oldham and Salford.  The Framework has been established to 
provide a consistent approach to embedding Social Value in procurement and 
commissioning processes across Greater Manchester.

The Star Procurement Team received specific training on the new policy in early 
January 2015 and will be looking to embed the framework into procurement 
activity going forward.  It was noted that the format of the training would now be 
rolled out to other Councils in Greater Manchester.

A member queried how the framework would be applied in practice.
The Director of Procurement (STaR Shared Procurement) clarified that the aim 
was to deliver at least two social value outcomes from each procurement activity.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

(c) Strategy Overview (Presentation) 

The Committee received a presentation from the Director of Procurement (STaR 
Shared Procurement) which gave an overview of procurement, STaR’s vision and 
objectives and how STaR will contribute to the Corporate Priorities of each 
Council.

RESOLVED: That the presentation be noted.

11. PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK - PERFORMANCE STATISTICS (KEY 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS):-

Page 3



Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale (STaR) Joint Committee 
20 January 2015

4

FINANCIAL BENEFITS, SOCIAL VALUE AND LOCAL SPEND AND 
COMPLIANCE

The Committee were informed that there are four key themes emerging in relation 
to how the performance of the STaR should be evaluated: Compliance, Financial, 
Social Value and Service & Customer Satisfaction.

A “balanced scorecard” approach is being developed which will include indicators 
as to how activities can be measured and reported for each of the themes.

Members were asked to comment on the appropriateness of the measures 
proposed, discussion took place and comments were noted.  The Director of 
Corporate and Support Services (Stockport) explained that the role of STaR is not 
just about delivering new savings but is also about achieving best value and 
improved outcomes from a lower resource base.

It was noted that a base line position is core to demonstrating improvement and 
data will be captured at the end of the 2014/2015 financial year to populate the 
current position.

Members were supportive of the approach and requested further information at 
the next meeting.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

12. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting would be held on 13th April at Trafford Council.

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and finished at 7.20 pm

Page 4



Item 2. a Corporate Report

Report to: STaR Board Meeting 
Date: 24th March 2015
Report for: Joint Committee Meeting 13th April 2015
Report author: T&R Senior Accountant

STaR Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 – Period 11
(April 2014 – Feb 2015 inclusive)

1 Outturn 

1.1 The current approved expenditure revenue budget for the year is £1,232k and the 
forecasted outturn is £1,127k. This £(105)k favourable variance is 9.3% of the total 
expenditure budget.  

2 Variations to Budget 

2.1 The following details the £(105)k favourable variances and appendix 1 at the end of 
the report indicates the referred to budgets and reasons to which the variances relate:

£(127)k favourable, vacancy management while the team was recruited.

£50k adverse, agency, staff advertising, additional resources in order to increase 
the capacity of STaR during recruitment process. 

£(28) k favourable, running costs underspent mainly due to the lower than 
anticipated transport and subscription costs. This has been offset by the ICT set 
up costs for laptops and mobile phones.

Support Service costs for legal, ICT, HR, insurance and Finance will be £105k as 
per budget and no variance is forecasted.

£105k– contribution to earmarked for reserve due to the favourable forecasted 
outturn expenditure.

1Page 5

Agenda Item 3a



2

Period 11 Forecasted Outturn revenue expenditure and income variances 

Full 
Year 

Budget 
£000's

Total 
Months

 1-11 
 £000's

Projection 
to End of 

Year 
£000's

Forecast 
Year End 

Total
 £000's

Over / 
(Under)

Forecast
for Year 

£000's
Employees                     1,005 789 89 878 (127)
Agency                           0 16 33 49 49
Staff Advertising             0 1 0 1 1
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS 1,005 806 122 928 (77)
Premises 4 0 0 0 (4)
Transport 20 6 2 8 (12)
Equipment 1 0 0 0 (1)
Catering 4 0 1 1 (3)
Office Equipment 4 1 0 1 (3)
Consultants Fees 49 13 30 43 (6)
ICT Costs including 
telephones 26 35 5 40 14
Subscriptions 12 0 0 0 (12)
Other 2 1 0 1 (1)
RUNNING COSTS           122 56 38 94 (28)
SUPPORT SERVICES 
COSTS 105 0 105 105 0
Reserve Contribution 105 105 105
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,232 862 370 1,232 0

Page 6



Item 2. b  Corporate Reports -  2015/2016 Budget

2015-2016 Draft Budget for STaR

Full Year Full Year Variance
Budget Budget 14/15 and 15/16
14/15 15/16
£000's £000's £000's

Employees 1005 1039 34 (Note1)
Agency 0 0 0
Staff Advertising 0 5 5
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS 1,005 1,044 39
Premises 4 4 0
Transport 20 20 0
Equipment 1 1 0
Catering 4 4 0
Office Equipment 4 4 0
Consultants Fees 49 10 -39 (Note 2)
ICT Costs including telephones 26 10 -16 (Note 3)
Training 0 30 30
Subscriptions 12 24 12
Other 2 10 8
RUNNING COSTS 122 117 -5
SUPPORT SERVICES COSTS 105 105 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,232 1,266 34
CONTRIBUTIONS PER LA 411 422

Note 1 - Variance of £34k to accommodate salary and increase pension 
contributions, running costs as is.

Note 2 - Transfer majority of investment into training of staff

Note 3 - much of ICT investment is now made but several of the 
computers are over 4 years old

Page 7

Agenda Item 3b



This page is intentionally left blank



Item 2c - STaR HR –Statistics and Team Update      STaR Joint Committee April 2015

Starters/Leavers FTE & Headcount by Department (Apr 2014 – Jan 2015)

Starters Leavers

Headcount FTE Headcount FTE

STaR 4 4 1 1

Short Term/Long Term  & Absence by Reason

Reason Days Lost

(headcount)

Short Term

(headcount)

Long Term

(headcount)

Gastrointestinal Problems 
(Abdominal Pain, Gastroenteritis, 

Vomitting,Diarrhoea)

35 (3) 12 (3) 23 (1)

Anxiety/Stress/Depression/Other 
Psychiatric Illness

21 (1) 21 (1)

Headache, Migraine
48.5 (2) 2 (1) 46.5 (1)

Other Known Causes - Not 
Elsewhere Classified, E.g. 

Malaise, Poorly

44 (1) 44 (1)

Other Musculoskeletal Problems 
(Exclude Back Problems)

5 (3) 5 (3)

Back Problems
1 (1) 1 (1)

Cold, Cough, Flu Influenza
11 (3) 11 (3)

Pregnancy Related Disorders
20 (1) 20 (1)

Absence

Days Lost/Trigger by Directorate 01/04/14 – 31/01/15

Average 
FTE Days 

Lost

Total FTE 
Days Sick

Long Term Short Term

STaR 9.2 185 6.7 2.5
Page 9

Agenda Item 3c



This page is intentionally left blank



Item 3. d Corporate Report - Risk Register
Senior Responsible Owner: Sharon Robson                       
Project Manager: Ian MacArthur                                   
Rev (03) Issued (20/03/15)

KEY
L = Low (1)
M = Medium (2)
H = High      (3)

Summary Risk Description & Impact Preventative Actions

ID Date Raised Status Type Description of risk / impact Prob
L/M/H

Impact
L/M/H

Score
(P x I) Mitigating actions / Countermeasures Risk Owner

PR005 On going Process &
Resources Capacity of Senior Management Team 3 3 9

Two Senior Category Managers have handed in their notice.  We have
advertised unsuccessfully for one role, none of the candidates were
appointable. There was one internal candidate and they have been
offered an acting up role as a development opportunity and deliver the
role in the short term. STaR and Trafford HR are working together to
develop a route to recruitment which delivers the calibre of candidate
we are looking to attract.

DoP

F005 17/09/2014 On going Finance Not able to balance cost savings against
"local agenda" aspirations 3 2 6

Options appraisal to review/agree objectives and most appropriate
procurement strategy. Closer working with clients to understand
opportunities, fortnightly review of progress, using contract register to
understand when new contracting opportunities are coming up.

DoP / Full team

F009 17/09/2014 On going Finance Do not identify and deliver enough savings
opportutnieis . 2 3 6

Work with finance and commissioners to ensure that we deliver
greater value through the procurement process. Data interrogation to
understand spend patterns and identify new opportunities. Aligned
budet savings proposals and STaR savings programme. Robust and
proportionate work plan which allocates time to identifying and
delivering new savings opportunities. 

DoP / Full team

PR003 17/09/2014 On going Process &
Resources

STaR Contract Register does not include all
contracting activity 3 2 6

There has been significant progress made in this area as a result of
the Transparency Code requirements. This will continue to be an area
of focus  through 2015.  We are using data management expertise to
identify gaps and focus STaR team members on completing the data
with service managers.

SCM's / Full team

PR004 17/09/2014 On going Process &
Resources

Delay in agreeing Harmonised CPRs, and
scheme of delegation document for all 3
STaR councils

3 2 6
Consultation process is complete and we now need to work on legal
drafting and the Procurement handbook. Standardising processes will
mitigate risks.

DoP / SCM's / STaR
Legal representatives

COM00
6 17/09/2014 On going Communications LA clients do not engage fully with STaR,

limiting STaR's ability to deliver against KPIs 1 3 4

Communications continue to improve and are being addressed via a
number of activities 1. Customer service training for all staff 2.
Continued improvement in STaR intranet site and links 3. Agree
comm's plan with the comms team for each of the 3 Councils 4.
Training and workshops re. Contract Procedure Rules

DoP / SCM's

S046 17/09/2014 On going Systems & Tools ICT systems prohibit / constrain STaR from
working across 3 x LA's 2 2 4

Progress is now being made but issues such as access to all 3
intranet sites are still to be resolved. SpendPro conventions to be
agreed

DoP  / Enablement
Team

COM00
9 17/09/2014 On going Process &

Resources

Standardisation of documentation and
processes across the 3 x Councils and
STaR team.  

2 2 4
Business Improvement Manager to lead on this as part of the
development of the STaR Procurement Handbook which will be
published in conjunction with Contract Procedure Rules.

DoP / BIM / SCM's

SO47 16/03/2015 On going Systems & Tools 

The Chest is the internet portal which we
use to advertise opportunties. It is being re-
procured in 2015 and there may be risks of
perfomance issues as a result of any change
in source

2 2 4 This risk is shared across AGMA and a full project team have been
tasked with mitigating risks. AGMA

F008 17/09/2014 On going Finance Not able to achieve targets 1 3 3 Base line data to be established and targets set which stretch the
team but are achievable. DoP / Full team

PR021 17/09/2014 On going Process &
Resources

Work load is not equally distributed
throughout 3 x categories and peaks and
troughs in demand are not effectively
managed

1 3 3

The work plan is mainly constructed around contract end dates and
savings opportunities.  The KPIs ensure that we focus on achieving
these objectives for all 3 councils.  We also ask all staff to complete
timesheets to demonstrate where resource is being allocated. This
currently demonstrates an equitable allocation of resources across all
3 Councils.

DoP / SCM's

COM00
7 17/09/2014 On going Communications

STaR fails to consider the Corporate
Priorities of each 3 STaR councils when
carrying out procurement

1 3 3
Social Value training and workshop delivered 10th Jan. and GMCA
Social Value Framework to become part of standard operating
procedures

DoP / Full team

COM00
8 17/09/2014 On going Communications New Transparency requirements are not

implemented 1 3 3

Contract Register information now published for all three Council's.
Propose upload on monthly basis for first few months as  required to
complete data set.  All other procurement and spend related
mandatory requirements will be  achieved to schedule (end Jan 2015).
Thereafter we will review requirements to publish against
recommended transparency proposals.

DoP  / Enablement
Team

Key

New risk
Down graded

risk
Upgraded

risk
Stike

through 
Propose to

remove

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 3d



Low (L) 1
Medium (M) 2
High (H) 3

Page 12



1

Item 3a.                    Milestone Report - Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) 

Report to: STaR Joint Committee 
Date: 13th April 2015
Report from: STaR Board 

Recommendation:  To Approve Harmonised CPRs for Stockport, Trafford and 
Rochdale Councils

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 In order to harmonise processes and deliver an effective and consistent 
procurement process it is considered essential that Stockport, Trafford and 
Rochdale (STaR) have a single set of Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) for 
the three Councils.  This is a major undertaking since the CPRs are currently 
specific to each Council and are contained within the Constitution of all the 
Councils.

1.2 A CPR working group was established to lead on the harmonisation process. 
The group consists of representatives from Finance and Legal Services 
representing STaR Councils and the Director of Procurement for STaR.

1.3 The Joint Committee’s Terms of Reference include consideration of the CPRs 
under which it will operate for each of the Councils. This report therefore 
presents the proposed draft harmonised rules for consideration by the Joint 
Committee, as attached at Appendix One.  Subject to agreement by the Joint 
Committee, each Council will separately consider the proposed rules and 
decide whether to alter their constitution to incorporate the rules. Until each 
Council has adopted the harmonised rules, STaR will operate on the existing 
rules which are different for each Council.

1.4 Should there be any further changes proposed or comments to be made a 
verbal update will be provided at the Joint Committee.

2. DRAFTING AND CONSULTATION PROCESS

2.1 The first draft of the harmonised Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) for 
consideration by STaR Councils was completed in November 2014 and a 
consultation process carried out in December 2014. The consultation 
documentation identified the key changes from the existing CPRs to those 
proposed; this information was specific to each Council. Workshops for key 
stakeholders were organised and consultation feedback was captured and 
summarised for review.

2.2 As a result of the engagement process there was significant positive 
feedback regarding the proposed draft.  Specific points included the 
following:

Page 13

Agenda Item 4a



2

 Much clearer layout and formatting

 Straight forward and easy to understand

 More comprehensive

 The idea of a Procurement Handbook was well received, as was a 
simplified Scheme of Delegation

 If required, the inclusion of a Schedule to the CPRs allowing for Authority 
specific rules was welcomed 

 The Procurement Initiation Document (PID) was seen as a useful tool to 
inform and commence the procurement process from the outset. A “light” 
version for lower value contracts would be beneficial

 Further consideration of the role of Pre-Qualification Questionnaires 
(PQQs) and financial vetting was requested.

2.3 In addition there have been several questions and clarifications raised 
regarding key features of the proposed CPRs. 
Issues which are of particular note include:

 The proposed move to a £25,000 threshold for open advertising of 
procurement opportunities and the impact in terms of additional resources 
on service managers and STaR.

 Clarity regarding roles and responsibilities of STaR and client groups 
within the procurement cycle.

 Requests for procurement training.

3. KEY ISSUES

3.1 In view of the responses received it was agreed at the Joint Committee 
meeting on 20 January 2015 that more time should be allocated to the 
process of incorporating consultation feedback into the new CPRs. Extra time 
was needed to address the issues raised and ensure that the CPRs are 
effective. Key actions were agreed to ensure that the above issues were 
addressed. 

3.2 Drafting of CPRs
The CPR working group was tasked with agreeing and updating CPRs to 
incorporate all agreed matters arising from the consultation. The attached 
rules represent the result of this work.

Page 14



3

3.3 Incorporation of Local Requirements 
On 11 September 2014 Stockport’s full Council adopted a policy in relation to 
the award of contracts to companies which have been involved in blacklisting 
construction workers and who have not rectified their practices. As a result of 
this local policy the working group recognised that unless there was a co-
ordinated approach to local elected members’ adoption of such policies 
across the three local authorities, it would be necessary to have a separate 
schedule for each local authority. In addition, it was considered inappropriate 
for an officer working party to recommend changes in the interests of 
harmonisation that would remove elected member involvement in 
procurement decision making as provided for under Stockport’s existing 
rules. The only exception to this is a change to the procedure for authorising 
exemptions from compliance with the rules for Stockport.  The law allows 
little discretion to exempt Councils from complying with the obligation to hold 
a competitive procedure before awarding a contract and the harmonised 
rules provide that exemptions will be agreed by officers.

Incorporation of Schedule One into CPRs provides for inclusion of Council 
specific requirements.

3.4 Open advertising thresholds
Lord Young’s report of May 2013 recommended a number of reforms to 
create a simple and consistent approach to procurement across all public 
sector agencies. The reforms would support small and medium sized 
enterprises and voluntary organisations in gaining better and more direct 
access to contract opportunities. These recommendations have now been 
incorporated into regulations which require that where local authorities 
advertise contracts valued at £25,000 and above they must also advertise 
them on Contracts Finder. Contract Finder is a national internet portal which 
allows subscribers to view national procurement opportunities. 
 
Concern was expressed during the consultation process that the requirement 
to advertise on Contracts Finder would result in a substantial increase in the 
number of bidders to be considered for each procurement opportunity over 
£25,000. The harmonised CPRs allow each Council to choose between 
quotation and tender in lower value bands. Where quotations are sought 
there is no need to advertise. Tenders will always be openly advertised 
through the Chest but with the additional requirement to advertise on 
Contracts Finder if the value is more than £25,000.

3.5 The harmonised rules will comply with the Regulations and ensure that openly 
advertised opportunities valued over £25,000 are placed on Contracts Finder. 
In order to try and understand the number of procurement activities which may 
be captured between the £25,000 and £49,999 threshold STaR have 
reviewed data sources to try and articulate numbers. The Contract Register 
was the first item to be reviewed but this provided limited information on 
contracts which fall between these threshold values.  It is recognised that 
whilst the detail, content and accuracy of the Contract Register has improved 
significantly there is still much work to do in capturing all expenditure, 

Page 15



4

especially at the lower levels of spend.  The detail of this exercise is listed in 
Appendix Two.

3.6 We were able to understand the magnitude of expenditure a little better for 
Rochdale since we had a report which listed spend data below the £50,000 
threshold.  Again the information is listed in Appendix Two.  However, the 
detail should be treated with some caution in the sense that it lists the number 
of instances where the Council pays invoices between £25,000 and £49,999.  
This is not the same metric as the number of contracts between the 
thresholds. 

3.7 It is proposed that the impact of requiring open advertising of opportunities in 
this value band and the impact of this on the Councils will be kept under 
review and reconsidered after the implementation of the harmonised rules.

3.8 Procurement Handbook 
The Procurement handbook will be developed as a companion document to 
CPRs to provide a “how to guide” to procurement and working with STaR.  It 
will support understanding, implementation and compliance with CPRs. 

3.9 The development of this document is in progress. The Procurement 
Handbook will be an interactive document with hyperlinks to documentation 
so that users can easily navigate the information and access the documents 
they require.  As part of a full overview of systems, processes and 
documentation within STaR, a quality system is being employed which 
prescribes all activities within the team and the interactions with clients.  This 
is based on a “swim lane” approach which details key process flows, specific 
activities and the roles and responsibilities for each team within the cycle. An 
illustration of a swim lane is enclosed in Appendix Three.

3.10 Procurement Documentation 
Procurement documentation is in the process of development which is 
proportionate and appropriate for lower value contracts.  The intention will be 
to develop “user friendly” documentation which is streamlined and allows 
users to quickly progress through the process. Further, we will be consulting 
with the market to ensure that we understand and address some of the 
“barriers” that small, local and voluntary sector organisations may have 
encountered in the past. 

3.11 Training and Support
STaR has contributed to the first phase of the work regarding the 
competencies required for “The Stockport Manager”. Training sessions will be 
scheduled as part of the CPR implementation process for all three Councils.  
These events will focus on the feedback received from the consultation 
process and demonstrate how this consultation has been put into practice.

3.12 Furthermore, pending approval and incorporation into the Constitution of each 
Council a full training and awareness programme will be developed for clients 

Page 16



5

providing access points to the intranet and the Procurement Handbook for 
reference.

4. KEY CHANGES TO CPRS

4.1 Changes specific to Stockport Council
The items listed below summarise the key changes to CPRs.

a. New Schedule 1 which contains Local Rules for each Council including 
Stockport’s blacklisting policy.

b. All contracts will be recorded on a central contract register (Over £25,000 
will go on the Government’s advertising portal, Contracts Finder) and all 
contracts must have a nominated contract manager.

c. All procurement exercises irrespective of value will need to be registered 
with STaR via a Procurement Initiation Document.

d. The number of value bands and procedures has been reduced and 
simplified.

e. Verification and opening of tenders is far more flexible.
f. All contracts to be on standard terms and conditions, not just those above 

£2,000.
g. There will be additional flexibility for purchases made electronically
h. There will be an option to seal contracts valued above £50,000 and not 

just £250,000.
i. Approved Lists will be removed.
j. Variations and Extensions will be renamed “Modifications” and made 

clearer.
k.   The grounds for exemptions from the rules will be clearer. 

4.2 Changes Specific to Trafford Council
The items listed below summarise the key changes to CPRs.

a. New Schedule 1 which contains Local Rules for each Council.
b. All contracts are now recorded on a central contract register (Over 

£25,000 will go on the Government’s advertising portal, Contracts Finder) 
and all contracts must have a nominated contract manager.

c. All procurement exercises irrespective of value will need to be registered 
with STaR via a Procurement Initiation Document.

d. The number of value bands and procedures has been reduced and 
simplified.

e. Late tenders considered by Head of Legal.
f. Only arithmetical errors permitted now.
g. Verification and opening of Tenders is far more flexible.
h. Post-tender clarifications to be conducted by APO - no longer under 

guidance of Head of Legal.
i. Pre-award reports no longer required. High value contracts can be picked 

up by Key Decision route. Procurement Policies can require internal 
reporting requirements where necessary.

Page 17



6

j. Contract sign off covered by scheme of delegation generally but values 
remain the same.

k. All contracts to be on standard terms and conditions, not just those above 
£2,000.

l. Additionally flexibility for purchases made electronically.
m. Additional sealing requirements. Option to seal above £50,000 and not 

just £250,000.
n. Transfer of contracts tightened up to ensure proper compliance.  
o. Approved Lists will be removed.
p. Variations and Extensions will be renamed “Modifications” and made 

clearer.
q. The grounds for exemptions from the rules will be clearer.
r. Appointment of Consultants removed – is covered generally under the 

Rules

4.3 Changes specific to Rochdale Council
The items listed below summarise the key changes to CPRs.

a. New Schedule 1 which contains Local Rules for each Council.
b. All contracts are now recorded on a central contract register (Over 

£25,000 will go on the Government’s advertising portal, Contracts Finder) 
and all contracts must have a nominated contract manager.

c. All procurement exercises irrespective of value now need to be registered 
with STaR via a Procurement Initiation Document.

d. The number of value bands and procedures has been reduced and 
simplified.

e. Late tenders to be considered by Head of Legal.
f. Post-tender clarifications to be conducted by APO - no longer under 

guidance of Head of Legal.
g. Verification and opening of Tenders is far more flexible.
h. Pre-award reports no longer required. Local Rules now apply.
i. Contract sign off covered by scheme of delegation generally but values 

remain the same.
j. All contracts to be on standard terms and conditions, not just those above 

£2,000.
k. Additionally flexibility for purchases made electronically.
l. Transfer of contracts tightened up to ensure proper compliance.  
m. Approved Lists removed.
n. Variations and Extensions changed to Modifications and made clearer.
o. Exemptions – clearer and more flexible.
p. Appointment of Consultants removed – is covered generally under the 

Rules.

4.4 Local Requirements
As detailed in paragraph 3.3 above, Schedule One prescribes Council specific 
rules where there are any.

Page 18



7

5. NEXT STEPS

5.1 The actions listed below provide a summary of the next steps should the Joint 
Committee decide to recommend that the Harmonised CPRs are proposed for 
approval by each Council.

5.2 It is the intention to provide feedback to respondents to the consultation 
process. It is proposed that this will be via the training and awareness events 
referred to in item 4.13.

5.3 Training will focus on the key changes for each Council and will also provide 
signposting to the STaR intranet site for each Council where further 
information will be available such as the Procurement Handbook

5.4 Governance processes regarding how the harmonised CPRs should be 
incorporated into the Constitution of each of the three Councils is listed in 
Appendix Four.  Democratic Services and Legal Teams of all STaR Councils 
have agreed the programme and pending the decision from the Joint 
Committee this item will be added to the appropriate meeting agendas for 
consideration. If the Joint Committee recommends the adoption of the 
harmonised rules, each Council will be required to adopt them as part of their 
individual constitutions before the harmonised rules will take effect. 

5.5 Pending final approval and incorporation into the Constitution of each Council 
a full training and awareness programme will be developed for clients.

6. RECOMMENDATIONS AND DECISIONS REQUIRED

6.1 It is recommended that the harmonised CPRs enclosed in Appendix One are 
approved by the Joint Committee and that the Joint Committee recommends 
that the CPRs are incorporated into the relevant Constitution of each of 
Council.  

Page 19



8

APPENDIX ONE

Proposed CPRs including local rules listed under Schedule One for each 
Council

Contents 

1. Introduction ...............................................................................................................................10

2. Interpretations and Definitions ............................................................................................12

3. Basic Principles and Responsibilities................................................................................16

3.1 Basic Principles ...........................................................................................................16

3.2 The Responsibilities of Officers and Members ....................................................17

4. Contracts to which these Rules do not apply ..................................................................17

5. Contracts which do not require full competition.............................................................18

5.1 Call-Off Contracts ........................................................................................................18

5.2 No competitive market................................................................................................18

5.3 Exemptions as prescribed by legislation ..............................................................18

6. Pre-Procurement Process .....................................................................................................19

6.1 Authority to carry out procurement activity .........................................................19

6.2 Appraisal of the procurement activity ....................................................................19

6.3 Framework Agreements .............................................................................................20

6.4 Pre-Procurement Market Research and Consultation........................................20

6.5 Estimating the Total Value of a Contract or Framework Agreement ..............20

6.6 Standards and Award Criteria ..................................................................................23

7. Quotes ........................................................................................................................................23

7.1 Requests for Quotes ...................................................................................................23

7.2 Submission and Receipt of Quotes ........................................................................24

7.3 Amendments to Quotes .............................................................................................24

7.4 Evaluation of Quotes ..................................................................................................25

Page 20



9

7.5 Contract Award – through a Quotation Process..................................................25

8. Tenders ......................................................................................................................................26

8.1 Invitations to Tender ...................................................................................................26

8.2 Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures.....................................................27

8.3 Submission and Receipt of Tenders.......................................................................27

8.4 Verifying and Opening Tenders ...............................................................................28

8.5 Amendments to Tenders............................................................................................28

8.6 Evaluation of Tenders.................................................................................................28

8.7 Contract Award – through a Tender process .......................................................29

8.8 Enquiries about the Tender process ......................................................................30

9. Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities ................................................................30

9.1 Contract Provisions ....................................................................................................30

9.2 Contract Formalities ...................................................................................................31

9.3 Contracts under Seal ..................................................................................................32

9.4 Transfer of Contracts..................................................................................................32

10. Exemptions and Modifications.........................................................................................32

10.1 Exemptions....................................................................................................................32

10.2 Procedure for Exemptions ........................................................................................33

10.3 Modifications to a Contract or Framework Agreement ......................................33

10.4 Procedure for Modifications .....................................................................................35

11. Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption ........................................35

12. Contract Management ........................................................................................................36

13. Retaining Relevant Documents........................................................................................36

SCHEDULE 1.....................................................................................................................................38

SCHEDULE 1.....................................................................................................................................39

SCHEDULE 1.....................................................................................................................................40

Page 21



10

1. Introduction
1.1 Stockport Council, Trafford Council and Rochdale Council have agreed, through an 

Inter Authority Agreement (“IAA”) to facilitate the joint delivery of Procurement 

Functions with a view to the attainment of a more economical, efficient and effective 

discharge of its Procurement Functions via a shared procurement service to be identified as 

“STaR”. Each of the STaR members have agreed to establish and participate in a joint 

committee (the “Joint Committee”) and have agreed to delegate their Executive and Non-

Executive functions relating to the operation of STaR to the Joint Committee. Other 

authorities may, from time to time, join the IAA.

1.2 These Rules are standing orders made pursuant to Section 135 of the Local Government Act 

1972. Compliance with the Rules and observance of European and domestic law from which 

they emanate (in particular the principles relating to non-discrimination, equal treatment and 

transparency) is mandatory for all Officers and Members. The Rules ensure that procurement 

activity is undertaken in a legally compliant, transparent, fair and competitive manner. 

1.3 Decisions relating to procurement are among the most important decisions that can be made 

by the Council its Members and Officers because the money involved is public money and the 

Council is concerned to ensure that high quality Goods, Services and the execution of Works 

are procured. Efficient use of resources in order to achieve Best Value is therefore an 

imperative. 

1.4 These Rules shall apply to all procurement activity where the Council is to procure any 

Goods, Services or the execution of Works, or enters into a Concessions Contract as either a 

contracting authority or commissioner of such, regardless of the origin of funding (such as 

external grants, partnership funding, pooled or joint budgets for example).

1.5 For the avoidance of doubt, these Rules shall apply to Framework Agreements. 

1.6 Where relevant, the Council shall have regard to the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

(“the Act”). This requires commissioners and procurers at the pre-procurement stage to 

consider how what is to be procured may improve social, environmental and economic well-

being of the Council’s relevant area, how it might secure any such improvement and to 

consider the need to consult. The Council and Officers should refer to the Procurement Policy 

for further guidance.

1.7 The Joint Committee shall monitor compliance with the Rules and undertake an annual 

review of the Rules. The Joint Committee may present recommendations for amendments to 

Page 22



11

the Rules to the Council from time to time and any such amendments shall be subject to the 

Council’s own ratification procedures. Any failure to comply with any of the provisions of these 

Rules must be reported immediately to the SRO for Legal. Failure by any Officer or Member 

to comply with the provisions of these Rules may lead to disciplinary action being taken 

against them.

1.8 These Rules must be read in conjunction with the Council’s Constitution and in particular the 

Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations, the Procurement Policy, any relevant guidance 

documents endorsed by the Council and the Council’s local Rules as identified in section 1.9 

below.

1.9 A number of local Rules can be found in the attached Schedule 1 and which form part of 

these Rules.

Further Information

Further advice can be sought from STaR:

General Enquiries - email: procurement@star-procurement.gov.uk

tel: 0161 9121616

Legal Enquiries - email: starlegal@trafford.gov.uk

tel: 0161 9124229

Page 23

mailto:procurement@star-procurement.gov.uk


12

2. Interpretations and Definitions
2.1 In the event of any conflict between EU law, English law and these Rules and Council Policy, 

the requirements of EU law shall prevail over English law and the requirements of English law 
shall prevail over these Rules and Council Policy.

2.2 Any reference to legislation, primary or secondary, shall include any 
amendments/replacements made from time to time.

2.3 All figures specified in these Rules are exclusive of VAT.

2.4 In the event of any doubt as to the interpretation of these Rules, or as to proper procedure to 
be followed, advice should be sought from STaR in the first instance.

2.5 In these Rules the words and phrases below have the following meanings:

 “APO”

 “ASO”

“Best Value”

“Bidder”

“Call-off”

“CM”

“Concessions”

“Contract”

means Authorised Procurement Officer and is the 
relevant STaR Officer who is responsible for the 
Goods, Services, execution of Works or 
Concessions Contract for which the Specification 
relates.

means Authorised Service Officer and is any 
Officer, within a directorate of the Council, who 
has delegated authority to undertake 
Procurement Functions.

has the same meaning as that defined in the 
Local Government Act 1999 as amended from 
time to time.
 
means any Economic Operator that submits a 
Quote.

means an order made/call-off Contract entered 
into under a Framework Agreement and are 
subject to the application of Rule 5.1.

means the Category Manager or similar role with 
equivalent experience and seniority within STaR

means the granting of a right (exclusive or 
otherwise) to an economic operator to exploit 
works or services provided for their own gain with 
or without payment. 

means a legally binding agreement between the 
Council and the Contractor for the procurement 
by the Council of all Goods, Services, the 
execution of Works and Concessions Contracts 
and which incorporates the terms and conditions 
under which the Goods, Services, execution of 
Works and Concessions will be provided.

Page 24



13

“Contractor”

“Contracts Finder”

“Economic Operator”

“EIR”

“Electronic Purchasing System”

“EU Procurement Directives”

“Exemption”

“Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations”

“FOIA”

“Framework Agreement”

“Goods”

“Invitation to Tender”

shall mean the Bidder or Tenderer who the 
Council enters into a Contract with following the 
submission of a Quote or Tender and who is 
appointed by the Council to provide the Goods, 
Services, execution of Works or Concessions 
Contract. They may also be referred to as 
‘suppliers’, ‘providers‘ or ‘service providers‘ within 
certain Council departments.

means the web-based portal provided for the 
purposes of Part 4 of the Regulations by or on 
behalf of the Cabinet Office.

means any natural or legal person or public entity 
or group of such persons and/or entities, 
including any temporary association of 
undertakings, which offers the execution of 
Works and/or a work, the supply of Goods or the 
provision of Services on the market

means the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004

means purchases made online or via a telephone 
system

means the Public Contracts Directive 
2014/24/EU, the Concessions Directive 
2014/23/EU and other relevant Directives in force 
from time to time

means the release of the obligation to comply 
with these Rules

means the written code of procedures forming 
part of the Council’s constitution which provide a 
framework for proper financial management and 
which set out the rules on accounting, audit, 
administrative procedures and budgeting 
systems.

means the Freedom of Information Act 2000

means an agreement between one or more 
authorities and one or more economic operators, 
the purpose of which is to establish the terms 
governing Call-off Contracts to be awarded 
during a given period, in particular with regard to 
price and, where appropriate, the quantity 
envisaged.

means an inherently useful tangible item required 
by the Council, from time to time.

means an invitation issued by the Council to 
Tenderers to submit a Tender or a quote for the 
provision of Goods, Services, the execution of 

Page 25



14

“Key Decision”

“Modification”

“Modification Form”

“Officer”

“OJEU”

“PID”

“Post Tender Report”

“PQQ”

“Procurement Functions”

“Procurement Policy”

“Purchasing Cards”

“Quote”

“Regulations”

“Regulations Threshold”

Works or a Concessions Contract in accordance 
with the Specification or request for those Goods, 
Services, execution of Works or Concessions 
Contract.

has the same meaning as set out in the Council’s 
constitution

means any variation to a Contract, including an 
extension.

means the form supplied by STaR for the 
purpose of recording the authorisation of a 
Modification.

means any employee of the Council which shall 
include any person engaged by the Council to act 
as an agent or consultant on its behalf

means the Official Journal of the European Union

means a Procurement Initiation Document 
providing details of the procurement activity and 
the authority to commence it as required in 
accordance with Rule 6.1.

means a summary of the outcomes delivered by 
the procurement activity

means “pre-procurement questionnaire” and is 
the document used by the Council to screen 
potential Tenderers in accordance with the 
Regulations.

means the Delegated Functions as defined by the 
IAA

means the document which the Council may 
issue from time to time to set out how it will 
achieve its procurement objectives

means charge cards which work in a similar way 
to credit cards and can be used by and ASO to 
purchase Goods and/or Services.

means a formal offer submitted by a Bidder to 
supply Goods, Services, execute Works or 
operate a Concessions Contract at a defined 
price 

means the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 
SI2006/5, as amended or replaced from time to 
time, which implement the EU public procurement 
directives. 

means the financial threshold identified by the EU 
Procurement Directives, as amended from time to 
time,  and where applicable, requires the 
procurement activity to be subject to the 

Page 26



15

“Rules”

“Scheme of Delegation”

“SCM”

“Services”

“Specification”

“SRO”

“SRO for Legal”

“SRO for Finance”

“STaR Legal Officer”

“STaR”

“STaR Councils”

Regulations.

means these Contract Procedure Rules

means the scheme identified within the Council’s 
constitution which delegates powers and duties of 
the Council to Officers under Section 101 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and all other powers 
enabling such delegation necessary for the 
discharge of the Council’s functions.

means the Senior Category Manager or similar 
role with equivalent experience and seniority 
within STaR

means the time, effort and expertise required by 
the Council, from time to time, and supplied by a 
Contractor. 

means the outputs, outcomes and the scope and 
nature of Goods, Services, execution of Works or 
Concessions Contract required by the Council 
from a procurement activity.

means “Senior Responsible Officer” and is the 
Officer delegated in the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation for the relevant service with the 
responsibility for the award of the Contract.

means the “Senior Responsible Officer for Legal” 
and is the most senior Officer delegated in the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Legal 
Services or in default of such delegation, the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer.

means the “Senior Responsible Officer for 
Finance” and is the most senior Officer delegated 
in the Council’s Scheme of Delegation for the 
Finance Services or in default of such delegation, 
the Officer appointed by the Council pursuant to 
s151 of the Local Government Act 1972.

means a member of the legal team jointly funded 
by all participating Council’s in accordance with 
the IAA, whose role is to provide legal support to 
STaR.
 
means the shared procurement service hosted by 
Trafford Borough Council on behalf of Trafford 
Borough Council, Rochdale Metropolitan Borough 
Council and Stockport Metropolitan Borough 
Council and other public authorities as 
determined from  time to time whose function and 
remit is described in these Rules, the IAA and the 
Councils’ constitutions

means those local authorities who have resolved 
to delegated their Procurement Functions to the 
STaR Joint Committee. 

Page 27



16

“Tender”

“Tenderer”

“The Chest”

“TUPE”

“Value for Money”

“Works”

“Writing”

means a formal offer submitted by a Tenderer to 
the Council at a stated price in response to a 
Specification to supply Goods, Services, execute 
Works or operate a Concessions Contract. 

means any Economic Operator that submits a 
Tender.

means the Council’s eProcurement system.

means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection 
of Employment) Regulations 2006 as amended 
from time to time together with any EU Directives 
including but not limited to the Acquired Rights 
Directive 2001/23/EC, as amended from time to 
time.

means the optimum combination of whole-life 
costs, price, quality and benefits to meet the 
Council‘s requirement. Such a term equates to 
the EU procurement requirement of most 
economically advantageous offer as well as the 
duty of Best Value as defined by the Local 
Government Act 1999 as amended from time to 
time.

means the provision of physical activity which is 
directed toward the production or 
accomplishment of something by the Contractor, 
from time to time. 

the requirement that any document should be in 
writing is satisfied where (apart from the usual 
meaning of that expression) the text of it is 
created and transmitted by electronic means, in 
legible form, and capable of being used for 
subsequent reference. 

3. Basic Principles and Responsibilities 
3.1 Basic Principles 
3.1.1 All procurement activity must comply with all of the following principles of European Union 

(EU) Law:

a. free movement of Goods and Services;

b. non-discrimination;

c. openness/transparency;

d. equal treatment for all; and

e. proportionality

Page 28



17

3.1.2 All procurement activity must be compliant with the latest EU laws, national legislation, the 

Council Constitution and the local policies in Schedule 1, and have regard to:

a. The need to achieve accountability through effective mechanisms which enable 

Officers and Members of the Council to maintain the highest standards of integrity and 

honesty and to enable them to discharge their responsibility on issues of procurement risk 

and expenditure of public money;

b. The need to provide consistent procurement policy to suppliers and achieve 
competitive supply; 

c. The need to meet commercial, regulatory and Corporate Priorities of the Council;
d. The need to achieve efficiencies by administering procurement processes which are 

cost effective;

e. The need to ensure Value for Money
f. The need to ensure fair-dealing by ensuring that suppliers are treated fairly and without 

unfair discrimination, including protection of commercial confidentiality where compatible 

with the Council’s obligations under FOIA and EIR;

g. The need to maintain integrity by excluding corruption or collusion with suppliers or 

others from procurement processes;

h. The need to ensure informed decision-making based on accurate information; 

i. The need to ensure legality in the administration of procurement processes and award 

of contracts;

j. The need to promote responsiveness by endeavouring to meet the aspirations, 

expectations and needs of the community served by the procurement processes;

k. The need to provide transparency by ensuring that there is openness and clarity on the 

Council’s procurement policy and its delivery.

l. The need to create and retain an audit trail in relation to each procurement activity

3.2 The Responsibilities of Officers and Members
3.2.1 Officers and Members involved in procurement activity must comply with these Rules, the 

Council’s Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations, the Council’s Employees Code of 

Conduct/Members Code of Conduct. They must also have due regard to any guidance 

provided by STaR.

4. Contracts to which these Rules do not apply
4.1 These Rules do not apply to the following:

a. employment contracts for Officers engaged on a PAYE basis;

b. Contracts relating solely to the disposal or acquisition of securities; 

c. Contracts for the acquisition of an interest in land and property;

Page 29



18

d. Contracts for the appointment of Counsel or the appointment of experts for the purpose of 

legal, or potential legal proceedings by the SRO for Legal Services.

5. Contracts which do not require full competition
The following circumstances may be exempt from the requirement of Rule 7 (Quotes) and 

Rule 8 (Tenders). The ASO must complete an Exemption Form in accordance with Rule 10.2 

where any of these circumstances are applicable.

5.1 Call-Off Contracts
5.1.1 Call-off Contracts where a suitable Framework Agreement has been identified in accordance 

with Rule 6.3. 

5.2 No competitive market
5.2.1 Where any of the following circumstances apply and subject to Rule 5.2.2: 

a. Proprietary or patented goods or services are proposed to be purchased which, in the 

opinion of the ASO, are only obtainable from one person, and it can be demonstrated that 

no reasonably satisfactory alternative to those proprietary or patented goods is available; 

or

b. The ASO can demonstrate that no genuine competition can be obtained in respect of the 

purchase of particular Goods, Services or execution of Works; or

c. The ASO is satisfied that the Services or execution of Works are of such a specialist 

nature that they can only be carried out by one person (e.g. statutory undertakers); or

d. Goods are proposed to be purchased by or on behalf of the Council at a public auction; or

e. Goods or Services are proposed to be purchased which are of a specialist or unique 

nature (such as antiquities for museums or a particular performance artist); or

f. Any other exceptional circumstances.

Further guidance can be provided by STaR and an ASO must seek advice where there is any 

doubt.

5.2.2 The ASO, in conjunction with STaR and a STaR Legal Officer, shall ensure that the Contract 

terms and conditions are appropriate taking into account all relevant factors (such as benefit 

and risk to the Council) and ensure that the Contract complies with Rule 9.

5.3 Exemptions as prescribed by legislation
5.3.1 Certain other arrangements contained in European or domestic legislation may permit an 

exemption from the requirement for competition.

Page 30



19

6. Pre-Procurement Process
6.1 Authority to carry out procurement activity
6.1.1 Any procurement activity carried out on behalf of the Council must be carried out by an ASO 

with the appropriate delegated authority as set out in the Scheme of Delegation. The ASO 

must submit either a Quote or Tender PID to STaR prior to starting the relevant procurement 

activity. By submitting the PID the ASO confirms that they have the authority to carry out the 

procurement activity.

6.2 Appraisal of the procurement activity
6.2.1 The ASO, together with the APO, must conduct an options appraisal of the route to market 

and consider the following:

a. Value for Money;

b. The need for the expenditure and its priority;

c. The objectives of the purchase;

d. Whether it is a Key Decision

e. Any risks associated with the purchase and how to manage them;

f. The market;

g. TUPE and pensions; 

h. Which procurement method is most likely to achieve the purchasing objectives;

i. Existing and compliant Framework Agreements or other arrangements; and

j. The economic, social and environmental wellbeing of the borough and the benefit which 

the procurement process can bring to the community and  have regard to the duty to 

secure continuous improvement in accordance with Best Value.

6.2.2 Where award for a Contract for services may result in employees of the Council or its 

Contractor transferring to a new employer, the advice of the SRO for Human Resources and 

the SRO for Legal must be obtained before the commencement of the procurement activity to 

ensure compliance with TUPE, and other related legislation, and to assess the implications in 

respect of pension arrangements.

6.2.3 The APO must ensure that an appropriate Specification or request for a Quote commensurate 

to the scope of the Goods, Services, execution of Works or Concessions Contract required is 

written prior to the commencement of any procurement activity. Advice from STaR must be 

sought where it is proposed that a Specification or request for a Quote is not used.

6.2.4 For procurement under the Regulations Thresholds, the use of PQQs is no longer permitted 

by the Regulations. However, the Regulations do permit the use of suitability assessment 

questions where they are relevant to the subject matter of the procurement and are 

proportionate. Further guidance on suitability assessment questions may be sought from 

Page 31



20

STaR but in any event, advice must be sought from STaR where it is proposed that such 

questions are to be used. 

6.3 Framework Agreements
6.3.1 Where, following an options appraisal as required by Rule 6.2, a suitable Framework 

Agreement is identified, the ASO must ensure that:

a. Any Call-off Contract is entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant 

Framework Agreement; and 

b. Where applicable, a mini-competition (the tender process required by the Framework 

Agreement) is held in accordance with rules of the Framework Agreement.

6.3.2 For the avoidance of doubt, a Framework Agreement is considered suitable where it has 

either been entered into by:

a. the Council in compliance with these Rules; or

b. another local authority, a local authority purchasing consortium or central government 

where the Framework Agreement has been tendered and awarded in accordance with 

EU public procurement  legislation, and the Council is identified as a contracting authority.

6.3.3 Where a Framework Agreement has been set up following an EU Tender, there must be full 

compliance with EU rules when awarding Call-off Contracts under it.

6.4 Pre-Procurement Market Research and Consultation
6.4.1 The ASO and APO responsible for the procurement activity:

a. may consult potential Bidders or Tenderers in general terms about the nature, level and 

standard of the supply, contract packaging and other relevant matters, prior to a request 

for a Quote or an Invitation to Tender provided this does not prejudice any potential 

Bidders or Tenderers; and

b. must not seek or accept technical advice on the preparation of a request for a Quote or 

an Invitation to Tender from anyone who may have a commercial interest in the tender, as 

this may prejudice the equal treatment of all potential Bidders and Tenderers or distort 

competition. 

Advice must be sought from STaR in all instances.

6.5 Estimating the Total Value of a Contract or Framework Agreement  
6.5.1 The Council must not split Contracts or Framework Agreements to avoid public procurement 

rules or calculate the value of Contracts in such a way as to deliberately avoid exceeding the 

Page 32



21

Regulation Thresholds or any threshold identified in these Rules. Therefore all Contracts 

should be dealt with according to their total value and all Officers must calculate the total 

value (excluding VAT) of any Contract.  The value of a Contract should be calculated as 

follows and applies to the aggregate value of the Contract:

Yearly contract value X Contract Period in years (including any 
option to extend) = Total value.

Where the duration of the contract is indeterminate or is longer than four years, this should be 

taken to be the estimated value of the contract over a period of four years. 

6.5.2 The value of a Framework Agreement means the estimated amount payable by the users of 

the Framework Agreement for the Goods, Services or execution of Works (excluding VAT) 

under Call-off Contracts entered into over the entire possible duration of the Framework 

Agreement.

6.5.3 Framework Agreements must not be for more than four years (including options to extend) 

unless otherwise authorised by the SRO for Legal.

6.5.4 The value of the Contract or Framework Agreement will determine which procurement activity 

to follow in accordance with Table 1 below subject to Rules 6.5.6 and 6.5.7: 

Table 1
Goods, Services and Concessions

Value Procurement Activity Minimum Requirement for 
advertising the opportunity

£0 - £4,999.99 Minimum one Quote in 
accordance with Rule 7 - Quotes

N/A*

Minimum three Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 7 - Quotes

N/A*£5,000 - £49,999.99

In accordance with Rule 8 – 
Tenders

The Chest (and Contracts 
Finder over £25k)

£50,000 and up to the 
Regulation Thresholds

In accordance with Rule 8 - 
Tenders

The Chest and Contracts 
Finder

Page 33



22

Above the Regulation 
Thresholds

Most appropriate procedure 
permitted by the Regulations

OJEU Notice and Contracts 
Finder

Works and Public Works Concessions

Value Procurement Activity Minimum Requirement for 
advertising the opportunity

£0 - £4,999.99 Minimum one Quote in 
accordance with Rule 7 - Quotes

N/A*

£5,000 - £74,999.99 Minimum three Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 7 - Quotes

N/A*

Minimum six Quotes in 
accordance with Rule 7 – Quotes

N/A*£75,000 - £249,999.99

In accordance with Rule 8 – 
Tenders

The Chest and Contracts 
Finder

£250,000 up to the Regulation 
Thresholds

In accordance with Rule 8 - 
Tenders

The Chest and Contracts 
Finder

Above the Regulation 
Thresholds

Most appropriate procedure 
permitted by the Regulations

OJEU notice and Contracts 
Finder

*WHERE ANY OPPORTUNITY OVER £25K IS OPENLY ADVERTISED, IT MUST BE 
PLACED ON CONTRACTS FINDER 

6.5.5 Where the value of the Contract is above the Regulation Thresholds, the ASO and the APO 

will determine which procurement activity to follow in accordance with the Regulations.

6.5.6 Irrespective of the value in Rule 6.5.4 Contracts and Framework Agreements that are subject 

to European Union grant funding requirements shall be advertised in accordance with 

Page 34



23

published guidance, ERDF National Procurement Requirements (ERDF-GN-1-004) as 

amended from time to time.

6.5.7 The ASO and APO shall ensure that, where proposed Contracts or Framework Agreements, 

irrespective of their value, might be of interest to potential Economic Operators located in 

other member states of the European Union, a sufficiently accessible advertisement is 

published.  

6.6 Standards and Award Criteria 
6.6.1 Before inviting Quotes or Tenders, the ASO, with support from the APO, must ascertain any 

relevant British, European or international standards which apply to the subject matter of the 

Contract. The ASO must include those standards or equivalent where they are necessary to 

describe the required quality. In any instances of uncertainty, STaR can be consulted if it is 

proposed to use standards other than European standards.

6.6.2 The ASO must define award criteria that is appropriate to the procurement activity and 

designed to secure an outcome giving Value for Money for the Council. The basic award 

criteria shall include one of the following:

a. Most economically advantageous tender (“MEAT”) - where considerations other than 

price also apply;

b. Lowest price - where payment is to be made by the Council;

c. Highest price - if payment is to be received.

If MEAT is the chosen award criteria, advice must be obtained from STaR to ensure that it is 

compatible with the EU Directives and the Regulations. 

6.6.3 The ASO must seek advice from STaR to ensure any award criteria are compliant with 

relevant legislation and best practice.

7. Quotes
7.1 Requests for Quotes
7.1.1 All Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, must be 

confirmed in writing before a decision to award can be made and all Quotes must be stored 

on The Chest. 

7.1.2 When requesting a Quote, an appropriate description of the Goods, Services, execution of 

Works or Concessions (commensurate with the value of the Contract) setting out the 

Council’s requirements in sufficient detail must be provided to prospective Bidders to enable 

the submission of competitive Quotes. 

Page 35



24

7.1.3 The request for a Quote shall also make reference to or include the following as a minimum:

a. the terms and conditions of Contract that will apply; and

b. notification that Quotes are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are compiled 

at the Bidder’s expense; and

c. a description of the award criteria as appropriate and in accordance with Rule 6.6; and

d. the date and time by which a Quote is to be submitted by; and

e. that the Council is not bound to accept any Quotes submitted.

7.1.4 The proposed form of Contract must comply with Rule 9 and where possible the Council’s 

standard terms and conditions of Contract must be used. Advice must be sought from a STaR 

Legal Officer and approval given by the SRO for Legal where alternative terms and conditions 

are used.

7.1.5 Where requests for a Quote are sought from more than one prospective Bidder, where 

possible, the request must be sent to each Bidder at the same time and contain the same 

conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the same basis.

7.2 Submission and Receipt of Quotes
7.2.1 Bidders must be given a reasonable period in which to prepare and submit a proper Quote, 

consistent with the complexity of the Contract requirement.

7.2.2 In the event that an abnormally low Quote is received, the ASO must take advice from STaR 

on how to proceed.

7.2.3 Any Quote (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and time 

for submission of Quotes shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in exceptional 

circumstances and only with agreement from the SRO for Legal Services.

7.2.4 If fewer than the minimum number of Quotes is received as stipulated in Table 1 in Rule 6.5, 

then advice must be sought from the Director of Procurement (STaR) as to whether to 

proceed. Any decision must be recorded in writing and stored on The Chest.

7.3 Amendments to Quotes
7.3.1 The Council may accept amendments to Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under 

Framework Agreements, providing they are received prior to the closing date for submissions. 

In such circumstances, any alterations must be made by resubmitting a new Quote and 

clearly highlighting which Quote (and associated documents) is correct and which should be 

considered as part of the procurement activity.

Page 36



25

7.3.2 A Quote may be amended after the closing date for submission if the amendment is made 

only in order to correct an arithmetical error. Such amendments may only be made with the 

prior approval of the Director of Procurement (STaR).

7.4 Evaluation of Quotes
7.4.1 All compliant Quotes, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 

must be checked by the ASO to ensure they are arithmetically correct. The ASO may seek 

advice from STaR if there is any doubt. If arithmetical errors are found they should be notified 

to the Bidder, who should be requested to confirm or withdraw their Quote. Alternatively, if the 

rates in the Quote prevail over the overall price, an amended Quote may be requested to 

accord with the rates given by the Tenderer.

7.4.2 Where MEAT is used as the award criteria, all evaluations including an explanation of the 

reasons for the scores should be recorded on The Chest. The ASO must then confirm to 

STaR that the Contract can be awarded in accordance with Rule 7.5 by updating the PID.

7.4.3 Officers must ensure transparency and fairness during the evaluation process.

7.5 Contract Award – through a Quotation Process
7.5.1 The Contract will be awarded in accordance with the award criteria used. 

7.5.2 Where the Quote is not within the relevant approved budget but additional budgetary 

provision is available, the relevant ASO, with the approval of the SRO for Finance, may 

accept the Quote ensuring compliance with the Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations.

7.5.3 The approval to award the Contract must be given in accordance with the Council’s Scheme 

of Delegation. 

7.5.4 All award decisions must be recorded in the PID, signed and dated by the ASO, the APO and 

the SRO for the relevant service. 

7.5.5 Once the decision has been made and the approval given to award the Contract, the ASO 

must send a Contract award letter to the winning Bidder(s).

7.5.6 Prior to commencement of the Contract, the Contract must be completed in accordance with 

Rule 9.2 unless Rule 9.2.5 applies. 

7.5.7 STaR will, where necessary, advise on the formalities for completion of the contract by parties 

other than the Council and how to ensure that the Contract is legally binding.

Page 37



26

8. Tenders
8.1 Invitations to Tender
8.1.1 All Tender opportunities must be placed on The Chest and, where appropriate, Contracts 

Finder in accordance with Table 1 at Rule 6.5.

8.1.2 The Invitation to Tender, shall include the following where appropriate:

a. A form upon which the Tenderer can provide details of its bid (“Form of Tender”);

b. A reference to the Council’s ability to award in whole, in part or not at all; 

c. A Specification that describes the Council’s requirements in sufficient detail to enable the 

submission of competitive offers; 

d. the terms and conditions of Contract that will apply; 

e. A requirement for Tenderers to declare that the Tender content, price or any other figure 

or particulars concerning the Tender have not been disclosed by the Tenderer to any 

other party (except where such a disclosure is made in confidence for a necessary 

purpose); 

f. A requirement for Tenderers to fully complete and sign all Tender documents including 

the Form of Tender and certificates relating to canvassing and non-collusion; 

g. Notification that Tenders are submitted to the Council on the basis that they are compiled 

at the Tenderer’s expense; 

h. A description of the award procedure and the evaluation criteria to be used to assess 

Tenders including any weightings as considered appropriate and in accordance with Rule 

6.6. The evaluation criteria must be clear, concise and unambiguous and must be 

approved by the APO in consultation with the ASO. The evaluation criteria cannot be 

amended once published in the Invitation to Tender; 

i. The method by which any arithmetical errors discovered in the submitted Tenders are to 

be dealt with and in particular, whether the overall price prevails over the rates in the 

Tender or vice versa; 

j. Whether the Council is of the view that TUPE will be applicable in relation to the 

procurement activities;

k. Whether additional arrangements will be required in relation to pension provision;

l. Provisions relating to the Council’s termination rights in the event that corruption is 

discovered; 

m. The relevance and application of any parent company guarantees and/or bonds; 

n. That the Council is not bound to accept Tenders; and

o. Any matters required by local polices in Schedule 1.

8.1.3 The proposed form of Contract must comply with Rule 9 and where possible the Council’s 

standard terms and conditions of Contract must be used. Advice must be sought from the 

Page 38



27

STaR Legal Officer and approval given by the SRO for Legal where alternative terms and 

conditions are used.

8.1.4 All Tenderers invited to Tender must be issued with the same information at the same time 

and contain the same conditions. Any supplementary information must be given on the same 

basis. 

8.1.5 All communications relating to Tenders must be recorded on The Chest. 

8.2 Pre and Post Tender Clarification Procedures
8.2.1 Providing pre-Tender clarification to potential or actual Tenderers, or seeking clarification of a 

Tender, is permitted subject to Rule 8.2.3.

 

8.2.2 Post-tender clarification may be undertaken with Tenderers only where it is essential in order 

to be completely clear about any fundamental aspect of the Tender submission before the 

completion of the Tender evaluation process and subject to Rule 8.2.3. 

8.2.3 All pre- and post- tender communication must be conducted either in writing or in a meeting 

recorded by the ASO. All correspondence or meetings must be documented and retained on 

The Chest. Where a meeting is required, there must always be more than one Officer present.

8.2.4 At all times during the clarification process, the Council shall consider and implement the 

principles of non-discrimination, equal treatment and transparency.

8.2.5 Unless otherwise permitted by the Regulations, in no circumstances are post-award 

negotiations permitted. 

8.3 Submission and Receipt of Tenders 
8.3.1 Tenderers must be given a reasonable period in which to prepare and submit a proper 

Tender, consistent with the complexity of the Contract requirement and in accordance with the 

Regulations.

8.3.2 Any Tender (including all associated documents) submitted after the specified date and time 

for submission of Tenders shall only be accepted or considered by the Council in exceptional 

circumstances and only with agreement from the SRO for Legal Services.

8.3.3 All Tenders received, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 

must remain unopened until the specified closing date and time has passed.

Page 39



28

8.3.4 If less than the minimum number of Tenders is received as stipulated in Table 1 in Rule 6.5, 

then advice must be sought from the Director of Procurement (STaR) on how to proceed. Any 

decision must be recorded in writing and stored on The Chest.

8.4 Verifying and Opening Tenders 
8.4.1 Tenders are to be verified by an APO who is independent of the procurement activity to which 

the Tender relates.

8.4.2 Once verified, Tenders are to be opened in accordance with the following Table 2:

Table 2

Value of Contract Officers required to be present: Expected Duration

£0 - £49,999.99 APO Within 2 working days of the deadline for 

submission

£50,000 and 

above

CM or SCM Within 2 working days of the deadline for 

submission

8.5 Amendments to Tenders
8.5.1 The Council may accept amendments to Tender submissions, including those in mini-

competitions under Framework Agreements, providing they are received prior to the closing 

date for submissions.

8.5.2 A Tender may be amended after the closing date for submission if the amendment is made 

only in order to correct an arithmetical error. Such amendments may only be made with the 

prior approval of the Director of Procurement (STaR).

8.6 Evaluation of Tenders
8.6.1 If a PQQ or an expression of interest prior to PQQ was used, all those Tenderers must be 

given feedback at the relevant stage. 

8.6.2 In the event that an abnormally low Tender is received, the ASO must take advice from STaR 

on how to proceed.

8.6.3 All compliant Tenders, including those in mini-competitions under Framework Agreements, 

must be checked by the ASO and the APO to ensure they are arithmetically correct. If 

arithmetical errors are found they should be notified to the Tenderer, who should be 

Page 40



29

requested to confirm or withdraw their Tender. Alternatively, if the rates in the Tender prevail 

over the overall price, an amended Tender price may be requested to accord with the rates 

given by the Tenderer.

8.6.4 Where MEAT is used as the award criteria, all evaluations including an explanation of the 

reasons for the scores should be recorded on The Chest. The ASO must then confirm to 

STaR that the Contract can be awarded by updating the PID.

8.6.5 Officers must ensure transparency and fairness during the evaluation process.

8.7 Contract Award – through a Tender process
8.7.1 The winning Tender shall be awarded the Contract in accordance with the award criteria 

used. 

8.7.2 Where the Tender is not within the relevant approved budget but additional budgetary 

provision is available, the relevant ASO, with the approval of the SRO for Finance, may 

accept the Tender ensuring compliance with the Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations.

8.7.3 The approval to award the Contract must be given in accordance with the Council’s Scheme 

of Delegation.  

8.7.4 All award decisions must be recorded in the PID, signed and dated by the ASO, the APO and 

the SRO for the relevant service. 

8.7.5 A Contract which has a contract value above the Regulation Thresholds, can only be awarded 

after a notice of the proposed award has been given to all unsuccessful Tenderers and the 10 

day standstill period has elapsed from the date the notice was given. If the 10 days expire on 

a non-working day, then the notice period will be deemed to have lapsed on the next working 

day. 

8.7.6 Once the decision to award a Contract is made, each Tenderer must be notified by either the 

ASO or the APO in writing of the outcome. All Tenderers must be notified simultaneously and 

as soon as possible of the intention to award the Contract to the successful Tenderer(s) and 

this should be done via The Chest. The letters must include a description of the relative 

advantages of the successful Tenderer. 

8.7.7 Prior to commencement of the Contract, the Contract must be completed in accordance with 

Rule 9.2 unless Rule 9.2.5 applies. 

Page 41



30

8.7.8 A STaR Legal Officer will, where necessary, advise on the formalities for completion of the 

contract by parties other than the Council and how to ensure that the Contract is legally 

binding. 

8.7.9 The APO must publish a contract award notice in the OJEU and on the Council‘s website no 

later than 48 days after the date of award of the Contract where a Contract value exceeds the 

Regulation Threshold and has been tendered pursuant to the Regulations or is subject to the 

relevant provision of the Regulations relating to Contract award.

8.7.10 Contract award letters, feedback to Tenderers and the contract Terms and Conditions, 

including any incidental documentation must be approved by the APO prior to sending where 

the value of the Contract is over the Regulation Thresholds.

8.8 Enquiries about the Tender process
8.8.1 The confidentiality of Tenders and the identity of Tenderers must be preserved at all times 

insofar as this is compatible with the Councils’ obligations under FOIA and EIR.

8.8.2 If the Council receives a request for information under the FOIA as a result of the de-briefing 

process, the request must be referred to both the Director of Procurement (STaR) and the 

relevant Officer of the Council who deals with such requests. The Council will be responsible 

for responding to the request. 

8.8.3 Any challenges, complaints or requests for feedback, clarification or further information must 

be referred to the Director of Procurement (STaR) who will advise on how to respond and 

notify the SRO for Legal.

9. Contract Provisions and Contract Formalities
9.1 Contract Provisions
9.1.1 All Contracts must be in writing and must set out the parties’ obligations, rights and risk 

allocations. Advice must be sought from STaR as to the appropriate form of Contract to be 

used and where possible, be on the Council’s standard terms and conditions.

 

9.1.2 All Contracts, irrespective of value, shall, where appropriate, clearly specify as a minimum:

a. What is to be supplied (i.e. the Works, materials, services, matters or things to be 

furnished, had or done)

b. The provisions for payment (i.e. the price to be paid and when)

c. The time, or times, within which the contract is to be performed

d. The provisions for the Council to terminate the Contract and break clauses.

Page 42



31

e. The provision for collateral warranties from sub-contractors.

9.1.3 STaR can provide advice on Contract specific terms and conditions.

9.2 Contract Formalities
9.2.1 Once a decision to award has been made in accordance with Rule 7.5.3 or 8.7.3, the Contract 

must be either be signed by the Officer authorised to award the Contract under the Council’s 

Scheme of Delegation or by Seal and in accordance with Rule 9.3.2.

9.2.2 Where the Contract is to be in writing, the ASO or APO must arrange for the Contract 

including all schedules and appendices to be signed by all parties. This can be done in two 

ways:

a) Sending bound hard copies of the Contract to the winning Bidder(s) or Tenderer(s) for 

signing; or

b) Sending electronic copies of the Contract to the winning Bidder(s) or Tenderer(s) for 

printing, binding and signing.

9.2.3 Before arranging for the Contract to be signed or sealed on behalf of the Council, the ASO 

must check that the returned signed Contract has not been amended or altered by the 

winning Bidder(s) or Tenderer(s) without prior written agreement by the Council.

9.2.4 Rules 9.2.1 to 9.2.3 do not apply to purchases made through an Electronic Purchasing 

System (EPS).

9.2.5 All Contracts which are to be formally completed in writing must be completed before the 

Goods are supplied, or the Service, execution of Works or Concessions Contract begins, 

except in exceptional circumstances, and then only with the prior approval from the SRO for 

Legal.

9.2.6 A purchase order must be raised in the appropriate eProcurement system for all goods, 

services and works requirements to be acquired through an EPS and for all Contracts. The 

purchase order must attach the terms and conditions of Contract between the Council and the 

Contractor.

9.2.7 The ASO must ensure that the person signing on behalf of the Contractor has requisite legal 

authority to bind the Contractor. Where there is any doubt, the ASO must seek advice from 

the STaR Legal Officer.

Page 43



32

9.3 Contracts under Seal 
9.3.1 A Contract must be sealed where:

a. The Council wishes to extend the liability period under the Contract and enforce its terms 

for up to 12 years; or

b. The price to be paid or received under the Contract is a nominal price and does not reflect 

the value of the goods or services; or

c. There is any doubt about the authority of the person signing for the other contracting party; 

or

d. The Contract value is £250,000 or above.

9.3.2 The seal must be affixed in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s Constitution.

9.4 Transfer of Contracts
9.4.1 No Contract should be transferred from one Contractor to another without first consulting 

STaR. Contracts can only be  transferred if approved in accordance with the table below:

Value of 
Contract/Quote

Decision Maker

All values SRO for Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees 

in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation 

and consultation in with the Director of Procurement 

(STaR)

10. Exemptions and Modifications
10.1 Exemptions 
10.1.1 In limited circumstances, it may be necessary to seek an Exemption from the Rules and 

guidance from STaR must be sought before any procurement activity commences.

10.1.2 An Exemption cannot be given where this would contravene the Regulations.

10.1.3 Exemptions will only be considered in exceptional circumstances. Examples of circumstances 

which may be considered exceptional could include the following:

a. Any of the circumstances identified in Rule 5;

b. To comply with legal requirements;

c. The Contract is for Goods, Services or the execution of Works which are required in 

circumstances of extreme urgency; 

Page 44



33

d. Repairs or parts — if the only option is to repair or buy new parts for existing equipment 

or buildings, and there is only one supplier;

e. Where a Service review includes the intention to co-terminate relevant Contracts.

10.2 Procedure for Exemptions
10.2.1 To apply for an Exemption the ASO must fill in the Exemption Form and submit it to the STaR 

for consideration and recommendation. This Exemption Form must then be signed 

(electronically or by hand) in accordance with the table below (unless Rule 10.2.2 applies).

 

Value of 
Contract/Quote

Decision Maker

All values SRO for  Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees 

in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation 

and in consultation with the Director of Procurement 

(STaR)

10.2.2 If an Exemption requires a Key Decision, then that Key Decision must be made in accordance 

with the Council’s Constitution. Guidance from STaR must be sought if there is any doubt as 

to whether a decision is a Key Decision.

10.2.3 The ASO must ensure that the Exemption Form provides full details of the request and any 

supplementary documentation to support the request. 

10.2.4 No commitment should be made to a potential Contractor prior to authorisation. 

10.2.5 The Director of Procurement (STaR) is responsible for ensuring a complete record of all 

Exemptions. A record of the decision approving an Exemption and the reasons for it must be 

stored electronically on The Chest.

10.2.6 In circumstances of extreme urgency, the relevant decision maker in 10.2.1 above may 

authorise an Exemption in writing without the need to complete an Exemption Form. The 

written authorisation provided in accordance with this Rule 10.2.6 must be submitted to STaR 

to be stored electronically on The Chest.

10.3 Modifications to a Contract or Framework Agreement  
10.3.1 A Modification may be permitted  if any of the limited criteria below applies and the 

Modification is not considered a substantial Modification as defined in Rule 10.3.4:

Page 45



34

a. The proposed Modification is for an increase in price of less than 10% of the initial 

Contract value where there is sufficient budgetary provision and such a Modification is in 

compliance with the Financial Procedure Rules/Regulations and subject to 10.3.2; or

b. The proposed Modification is for an extension for a particular period where there is 

sufficient budgetary provision and such an extension is in compliance with the Financial 

Procedure Rules/Regulations and subject to 10.3.3; or

c. The proposed Modification meets the following conditions:

i) the need for the Modification has been brought about by circumstances which the 

Council, acting diligently, could not have foreseen; and

ii) the Modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract; and

iii) any increase in price is not higher than 50% of the value of the original Contract or 

Framework Agreement.

10.3.2 Where criterion 10.3.1(a) is applicable, if several successive Modifications are made, the 

value shall be assessed on the basis of the net cumulative value of the successive 

Modifications.

10.3.3 Where criterion 10.3.1 (b) is applicable, the extension is not permitted where it would take the 

Contract value above the Regulation Thresholds.

10.3.4 A Modification of a Contract or Framework Agreement during its term is considered 

substantial if one of the following conditions is met:

a. the Modification introduces conditions which, had they been part of the initial procurement 

procedure, would have allowed for the admission of other candidates than those initially 

selected or for the acceptance of an offer other than that originally accepted or would 

have attracted additional participants in the procurement procedure;

b. the Modification changes the economic balance of the Contract or the Framework 

Agreement in favour of the Contractor in a manner which was not provided for in the initial 

Contract or Framework Agreement;

c. the Modification extends the scope of the Contract or Framework  Agreement 

considerably to encompass supplies, services or works not initially covered.

10.3.5 A Contract must not be modified without consulting the Director of Procurement (STaR).

Page 46



35

10.4 Procedure for Modifications
10.4.1 To apply for a Modification the ASO must fill in the Modification Form and submit it to the 

STaR for consideration and recommendation. This Modification Form must then be signed 

(electronically or by hand) in accordance with the table below.

Value of 
Contract/Quote

Decision Maker

All values SRO for Finance and SRO for Legal or their nominees 

in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation 

and in consultation with the Director of Procurement 

(STaR)

10.4.2 The ASO must ensure that the Modification Form provides full details of the request and any 

supplementary documentation to support the request. 

10.4.3 No commitment should be made to a potential Contractor prior to authorisation. 

10.4.4 The Director of Procurement (STaR) is responsible for ensuring a complete record of all 

Modifications is kept and a record of the decision approving a Modification and the reasons 

for it must be submitted to STaR to be stored electronically on The Chest.

11. Declarations of Interest and Anti-Bribery and Corruption
11.1 The Council‘s reputation with regards to procurement activity is important and should be 

safeguarded from any imputation of dishonesty or corruption.  All elected Members of the 

Council and Officers are reminded of their responsibilities in relation to gifts, hospitality and 

any conflicts of interest and should ensure they comply with the obligations set out in the 

Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct and the Officers’ Code of Conduct respectively and any 

other relevant policies, guidance or strategies relating to bribery, fraud and corruption issued 

or endorsed by the Council from time to time

11.2 Any Officer or Member must declare any interest which could influence their judgement in 

relation to procurement activity in accordance with the Council’s Codes of Conduct.

11.3 No gifts or hospitality should be accepted from any Bidders or Tenderers involved in 

procurement activity except in accordance with the Council’s Codes of Conduct. 

Page 47



36

12. Contract Management
12.1 All Contracts must have a Council Contract Manager (“Contract Manager”) for the entirety of 

the Contract. In the event that there is no named Contract Manager the ASO will fulfil the role 

of Contract Manager. 

12.2 The Contract Manager will be responsible for reviewing monitoring and evaluating the 

contract to ensure that its provisions and the services within it are being followed and 

performed as they should be. 

12.3 During the life of the Contract, the Contract Manager should monitor the Contract in respect to 

the following:

a. Performance (against agreed KPIs where relevant);

b. Compliance with specification and contract;

c. Cost;

d. Any Best Value duties ;

e. Continuous Improvement;

f. User satisfaction; and

g. Risk management.

12.4 Where the Contract is to be re-let, this information should be available early enough to inform 

the approach to re-letting the next contract.

12.5 STaR can provide advice and support on good practice in performance management of 

Contracts. 

12.6 All Contracts must be included and published on the Contracts Register maintained by STaR 

in line with the Local Government Transparency Code 2014. This is a mandatory requirement 

and it is the responsibility of the SRO for each Service to ensure that they have informed 

STaR of the Contracts they are responsible for and provided them with the information 

necessary to update the Contracts Register accordingly.

13. Retaining Relevant Documents
13.1 All records in relation to the award of Contracts and the associated procurement process, 

including supporting documentation, shall be stored by STaR in an electronic filing system to 

be available for inspection by the Council’s internal and external auditors, or Officer, 

immediately upon request. Records will be retained in accordance with relevant regulations 

applicable to electronic record retention.

Page 48



37

13.2 Hard copies of all written contracts shall be retained as follows:

13.3 If legislation related to any individual Contract stipulates a longer retention period than this, 

then the legislation requirements takes precedence over the Council’s minimum periods.

13.4 Once executed, the Council shall retain one original of the complete Contract documents in 

line with the timescales in the table above and one copy of the complete Contract documents 

shall be provided to the Contractor. 

Contracts with a value between £5,000
and £249,999.99

for six years after the end of the Contract

all sealed Contracts and Contracts with 
a value of £250,000 and above

for twelve years after the end of the Contract

Contracts that are grant funded 
regardless of value

Must comply with retention period above or the 
terms and conditions of the grant, whichever is 
the longer

Page 49



38

SCHEDULE 1 
Local arrangements for Stockport Council

The following are incorporated into the Contract Procedure Rules.

1. Basic Principles and Responsibilities

a. Denial of a job for discriminatory reasons such as trade union membership was made 
unlawful, and blacklisting was statutorily prohibited under the Employment Relations 
Act 1999 (Blacklists) Regulations 2010. 

b. On 11th September 2014 the Council resolved to ensure that in the future the Council 
will not enter into contracts with any companies, whether as contractors or 
subcontractors, which are implicated in blacklisting unless they can demonstrate that 
they have “self-cleansed” and taken adequate measures to remedy past damage 
done and prevent any future occurrence.

c. The Council should not invite tenders from, or award construction contracts to, 
companies that have breached the Blacklists Regulations.

d. The Council considers that the blacklisting of individuals amounts to grave 
misconduct in the course of a business or profession unless the organisation has 
taken adequate measures to remedy past damage done and prevent future 
occurrence.

e. Bidders for Council contracts will be required to certify that they have never 
blacklisted and if they have must produce to the Council’s satisfaction evidence that 
they have self-cleansed, to include details of the steps taken to remedy past damage 
done and prevent future occurrence.

Page 50



39

SCHEDULE 1 
Local arrangements for Trafford Council

There are no local arrangements.

Page 51



40

SCHEDULE 1 
Local arrangements for Rochdale Council

There are no local arrangements.

Page 52



41

APPENDIX TWO

Analysis of the number of potential procurement activities which fall between 
the £25,000 and £49,999 threshold 

In order to try and understand the number of procurement activities which may be 
captured between the £25,000 and £49,999 threshold STaR have reviewed data 
sources to try and articulate numbers.  

There are currently 55 live contracts listed on the Contract Register between the 
£25,000 and £49,999 threshold.  This appears to represent a relatively low number 
of contracts, particularly spread across three Councils.  However, it is recognised 
that whilst the detail, content and accuracy of the Contract Register has improved 
significantly, there is still much work to do in capturing all expenditure, especially at 
the lower levels of spend.  This means that using this information to understand the 
level of resource which may be required to implement full assessment of all bidders 
for contracts advertised on Contract Finder may be flawed.
  
We were able to understand the magnitude of expenditure a little better for Rochdale 
since we had a report which listed spend data below the £50,000 threshold.  
However, the detail should be treated with some caution in the sense that it lists the 
number of instances where the Council pays invoices between £25,000 and 
£49,999.  This is not the same metric as the number of contracts between the 
thresholds. Whilst the data below provides some context it must be recognised that it 
is based on generic assumptions which may not be reflected in practice.

 Total number of suppliers with transactions between £25,000 & sub 
£50,000 is 279

 Average Number of Transactions per Supplier is just short of 4

 All of these transactions were discounted on the assumption that several 
payments indicated that they related to an overall contract value greater 
than £50k.

The remaining spending which fell between the  thresholds was listed against 37 
suppliers and represented one off transactions only.  The assumption is that the 37 
one off transactions represent the additional number of procurement opportunities 
which would need to be advertised openly on Contract Finder.  The combined value 
of the 37 payments was £1.4m.

The data and the assumptions listed above are not ideal in helping us to understand 
the potential implications on resource as a result of open advertising between the 
£25,000 and sub £50,000 threshold.
  
It is proposed that the impact of requiring open tendering for contracts in this value 
band, and the impact of this on the Councils, will be kept under review and 
reconsidered after the implementation of the harmonised rules.

Page 53



42

APPENDIX THREE

ILLUSTRATION OF A SWIMLANE FOR THE PROCUREMENT INITIATION 
DOCUMENT PROCESS 

Populate/Update 
Contracts & Savings 

Registers with 
required Info

Yes

Liaise with Budget 
Holder to Agree 
Sign-Off of PID 

Stage 2

STaR Category Manager

No
STaR Initiates PID 
Document Stage 1 

& forwards to 
Budget Holder [BH] 

for Population of 
PID Document

Populate / Update 
Contracts Register 
& Savings Register 

with required 
Information

Proceed to Tender 
Stage of the STaR 

Procurement 
Process

[Date Trigger]

Client identifies 
Requirement(s)

Tender W
indow 

Closes / Award 
Decision M

ade

Client Finance Manager [FM]

[BH] to Liaise with 
[FM

] to confirm 
financial information, 

ensure feasibility 
and obtain [FM

] Sign-
Off

Return to Client for 
further Information 

to enable PID 
Document Sign-Off

Budget Holder to 
liaise with Finance 
M

anager [FM
] to 

confirm financial 
info, ensure 

feasibility and obtain 
FM

 Sign-Off

Client Budget Holder [BH]

BH to Populate key 
Financial Info 
[Budget/Cost 
Centre/BH 
Signature]

Client Contacts 
STaR with 

Procurement 
Enquiry

Canthe PID 
Document 
be Signed-

Off?

Page 54



43

APPENDIX FOUR

STOCKPORT GOVERNANCE PROCESS PENDING RECOMMENDATION TO 
PROCEED WITH CPRS

Committee / 
Meeting Title

Frequency Proposed Meeting 
Dates 

Deadline for Papers

Corporate 
Leadership Team

Weekly Tuesday 21 April 
2015

16 April 2015

Constitution 
Working Party

AD Hoc Monday 27 April 
2015

Friday, 17 April 2015

CRM&G Scrutiny 
Committee

6-weekly Tuesday 2 June 
2015

Agenda and papers 
required Friday, 5 
June 2015

Executive 6-weekly Tuesday 16 June 
2015

Agenda and papers 
required Friday, 5 
June 2015

Council Meeting 6-weekly Thursday 2 July 
2015

Papers required 
Monday 22 June 2015

TRAFFORD GOVERNANCE PROCESS PENDING RECOMMENDATION TO 
PROCEED WITH CPRS

Committee / 
Meeting Title

Frequency Proposed 
Meeting Dates* 

Deadline for Papers

CMT (Corporate 
Director to 
determine items 
to be reported to 
CMT)  

Bi-weekly Wednesday 22 
April 2015

Monday 20 April 
2015

Executive 
Briefing

Monthly 8 June 2015* 4 June 2015

Scrutiny Cttee Quarterly 17 June 2015* 9 June 2015
Standards Cttee 3x a year 24 June 2015* 16 June 2015
Executive Monthly 29 June 2015* 18 June 2015
Council Bi-monthly 8 July 2015* 30 June 2015

* Provisional, subject to approval at Annual Council 28 May

Page 55



44

ROCHDALE GOVERNANCE PROCESS PENDING RECOMMENDATION TO 
PROCEED WITH CPRS

Committee / 
Meeting Title

Frequency Proposed 
Meeting Dates

Deadlines for 
Papers

Democratic 
Structures 
Working Group

Ad hoc Can be set up as 
soon as 
documents 
available

Seven working days 
in advance

Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee.
(Amendments to 
the Council’s 
Constitution have 
been delegated to 
Licensing and 
Regulatory 
Committee)

Monthly 8 June 2015 25 May 2015

Page 56



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

1

Item 3. b – Milestone Reports

Public Contracts Regulations 2015 – Key Changes

Introduction of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
Public Contract Regulations 2015 represent the biggest review of European 
procurement law for some time.  The purpose of the report is to confirm the way in 
which these changes will be identified and publicised across the three STaR 
councils.

Further it will  highlight some of the key changes being introduced by the new Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (“PCR 2015”) when compared to the existing regime set 
out in the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 (as amended) (“PCR 2006”). 

Provisions are included which expressly state that a procurement should not be 
designed with the intention of excluding it from the scope of PCR 2015 or of 
artificially narrowing competition. In addition to complying with existing duties of 
transparency, equal treatment and non-discrimination, PCR 2015 has clarified that 
this also requires contracting authorities to act in a proportionate manner. 

Key Dates

PCR 2015 largely came into force on 26 February 2015. The new rules will only 
apply to new procurement processes beginning or taking place after this date

There are some key exceptions to the commencement date, including the following: 

• 1 April 2015 – obligations on the use of Contracts Finder are deferred until 
this date save for contracting authorities which perform their functions on 
behalf of the Crown. 

• 18 April 2016 – any procurement for health care services for the purposes of 
the NHS within the meaning and scope of the National Health Service 
(Procurement, Patient Choice and Competition) (No. 2) Regulations 2013 
started before this date is not covered by PCR 2015. 

Programme of Training / Awareness Raising

The STaR Procurement Team have been fully engaged in all documentation / 
guidance information regarding the implementation of PCR 2015.  The Trafford Legal 
team are also providing specific training which identify key changes and provide the 
procurement team with an opportunity to address queries / agree policy regarding 
implementation.

Further, Oldham Council have organised provision of free training from their external 
legal provider and  a number of the STaR Procurement  staff and  Trafford Legal will 
attend this briefing.

Page 57

Agenda Item 4b



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

2

In parallel, STaR will provide awareness raising and training to clients of STaR.  The 
intention is for STaR to take these proposals to the Senior Leadership and Corporate 
Management Teams for each of the Councils to agree how the information will be 
disseminated.

It is proposed that the training will be delivered via a number of workshop / training 
events giving participants an interactive opportunity to engage with the STaR 
procurement and legal teams.  A number of workshops will be offered to staff in each 
of the three Councils to ensure that there is sufficient access for all staff requiring 
training.  The training will be provided through April and May 2015.

In order to ensure most effective use of time for STaR officers and participants, the 
content of the sessions will provide an opportunity to address other contemporary 
issues as well as PCR 2015.  Changes to CPRs and Social Value considerations will 
constitute part of the training package demonstrating how each of the requirements 
are compatible and complementary in practice.

In addition to the above STaR will be engaging with other AGMA procurement teams 
to develop a suite of e learning packages to develop procurement competencies.  
This work has already started regarding social value considerations and we will 
continue to create and build a suite of packages focussing priorities on key issues.

Key Changes Particularly Relevant to STaR

General Overview

New provisions are included relating to the award of contracts between entities in the 
public sector. These include provisions to codify and clarify the “Teckal” exemption 
which allows the award of contracts between contracting authorities and controlled 
entities provided the following conditions are met: (i) the contracting authority 
exercises control over the entity similar to that which it exercises over its own 
departments; (ii) more than 80% of activities of the entity relate to the performance of 
tasks entrusted to it by the authority; and (iii) there is no direct private capital 
participation in the entity (with the exception of non-controlling and non-blocking 
forms of private capital participation required by national law in conformity with the 
EU Treaties). 
PCR 2015 also provide for contracts to be exempt where contracting authorities 
jointly control an entity based on similar tests to the above and for “Reverse Teckal” 
where the controlled entity (if a contracting authority itself) can award a contract to its 
controlling contracting authority. 

The thresholds are reviewed every two years by the Commission. As we are part 
way through the cycle, the main thresholds for works, services and goods contracts 
remain the same until 31/12/15. A new threshold for service contracts which are 
subject to the “light touch” regime is introduced:

Threshold

Page 58



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

3

Works £4,322,012
Goods/Services £172,514 

Light Touch Services £625,050

Conflict of interest provisions. 
Possible conflicts are stated to include staff members with financial, economic or 
other personal interest which might be perceived to compromise their impartiality or 
independence. Conflicts may also arise with incumbent suppliers. The obligations 
require a contracting authority to take appropriate measures to effectively prevent, 
identify and remedy conflicts of interest. In circumstances where measures cannot 
be taken to remedy conflicts, a contracting authority may have discretion to exclude 
the relevant bidder.

Electronic Requirements
Subject to certain limited exceptions, all communication and information exchange 
must be carried out by electronic means. 

Access to Information and documentation Requirements

PCR 2015 require that all contracting authorities offer unrestricted and direct access 
(free of charge) to all procurement documents from the date of publication of the 
contract notice in OJEU and that the contract notice must include a reference to the 
internet address where the documents can be accessed. Oral communication can be 
used provided that its content is documented to a “sufficient degree”. However, oral 
communication cannot be used in relation to essential elements (defined as including 
the procurement documents, the request to participate, etc) of the procurement 
procedure. Oral communications with tenderers which could have a substantial 
impact on the content and assessment of tenders is also required to be documented 
by appropriate means which may include audio records.

Procedures 

The open and restricted procedures remain a free choice for contracting authorities 
to select. The competitive procedure with negotiation (an updated version of the 
negotiated procedure) and competitive dialogue procedure remain available only in 
specific circumstances but these have been merged and widened and therefore 
should be easier to justify. 

In addition, contracting authorities will be able to utilise the new innovation 
partnership procedure as set out below.

Innovation Partnership Procedure

This is a new route adopted by the EC for public procurement which is aimed at 
increasing innovation. The economic operators taking part are known as partners. 
The basic features of the innovation partnership procedure include: 

•        the contracting authority will seek offers for one or more partners to assist in 
the development of an innovative product, service or works not yet on the 
market, and the subsequent purchase of the innovative solution without the 

Page 59



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

4

need for a separate procurement procedure for the purchase, provided the 
final purchase corresponds to pre-agreed levels of performance and 
maximum costs; 

• the procurement can be run with one or several partners carrying out 
separate R&D activities; 

• • the partnership procurement shall set intermediate targets to be 
attained by the partners taking part and provide for payment in appropriate 
instalments; 

• termination after each phase (in full or per partner) can be reserved upfront; 

• the procurement can be carried out in successive stages provided this is 
indicated upfront; 

•  the initial and each subsequent tender is to be negotiated but the final 
tender must not be negotiated; and 

• the minimum requirements and the award criteria must not be negotiated. 

Dynamic Purchasing Systems (Regulation 34)

Dynamic Purchasing Systems (“DPS”) are retained in PCR 2015. These systems are 
essentially open frameworks and provide for an electronic process for commonly 
used supplies, services or works. Contracting authorities must allow all economic 
operators the ability to participate during the validity of the DPS. They are not often 
used as, once the system is set up, PCR 2006 currently requires a further notice to 
be placed in OJEU in order to tender under the system. This requirement to publish 
a further OJEU notice is not required under PCR 2015 and the UK Government 
hopes more use will be made of DPS under PCR 2015. 

• The 4 year maximum duration contained in PCR 2006 has been deleted, 
albeit contracting authorities are required to indicate the period of validity of 
the system in the call for competition.

Modification of contracts (Regulation 72) 

Modifications to existing contracts are permitted without commencing a new 
procurement in the following circumstances: 

 Where the modifications, irrespective of their monetary value, have been 
provided for in the initial procurement documents in clear, precise and 
unequivocal review clauses, which may include price revision clauses, or 
options. 

 For additional works, services, or supplies by the original contractor, 
irrespective of their value that have become necessary and were not included 
in the initial procurement where a change of contractor cannot be made for 
economic or technical reasons; or would cause significant inconvenience or 
substantial duplication of costs for the contracting authority. 

Page 60



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

5

However, any increase in price cannot exceed 50% of the value of the original 
contract. 
 Where all of the following conditions are fulfilled: 

– the need for modification has been brought about by circumstances 
which a diligent contracting authority could not foresee; 

– the modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract; and 
–  any increase in price is not higher than 50% of the value of the original 

Light Touch Regime (Regulations 74/76)

Under PCR 2006, service contracts were divided into Part A (which were subject to 
the detailed regulatory regime) and Part B (which were only subject to limited 
obligations under that legislation). EU Treaty principles, including sufficient 
advertising and fair and transparent process, also applied to Part B services where 
there was cross-border interest. 

Under PCR 2015, Part B services have been replaced by a specific list of social and 
other services which are subject to the “light touch” provisions. 

 “Light touch” means that a contract notice or PIN used as a call for competition must 
be published in the Official Journal in the usual way and a contract award notice 
published once a contract has been awarded. The procedure can be determined by 
the contracting authority but must comply with principles of equal treatment and 
transparency and provide reasonable and proportionate timescales. PCR 2015 
specifically says that a contracting authority may use or adapt procedures available 
for fully regulated procurements.

Reserved contracts for certain services (Regulation 77) 

For certain specific health, social and cultural services to which the light touch 
regime applies, PCR 2015 allows contracting authorities to reserve the award of 
contracts for those services to certain types of organisations as part of its call for 
competition. The organisations entitled to bid must meet the following conditions: (i) 
the organisation’s objective is the pursuit of a public service mission linked to the 
delivery of the services; (ii) profits are reinvested with a view to achieving the 
organisation’s objectives; (iii) the structure of management/ownership of the 
organisation performing the contract are based on employee ownership or 
participatory principles; and (iv) the organisation has not been awarded a contract for 
those services in the past 3 years. 

If a contracting authority decides to reserve these contracts to such organisations, 
the maximum duration of a contract which can be awarded is 3 years.

Publication on Contracts Finder and Lord Young requirements (Regulations 
106, 108, 110-113) 

Page 61



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

6

PCR 2015 introduce a number of additional requirements governing the purchasing 

activities of contracting authorities. These came into force on 26 February 2015. 

The requirements include: 

 Where a contracting authority sends a contract notice to the Official Journal, it 
must also publish the information on Contracts Finder within 24 hours of when 
it is entitled to publish at national level. The same applies in respect of 
contract award notices although this is not required within 24 hours; 

 Having regard to guidance in relation to pre-qualification which may include a 
standard form. Guidance will also indicate what is considered to be a 
reporting deviation from the guidance, requiring an authority to notify the 
Cabinet Office; 

 Prohibiting the use of pre-qualification questionnaires for below EU threshold 
contracts (although the services thresholds are used for works or “light touch” 
regime contracts in this context given that the works and “light touch” 
thresholds are quite high); 

 A requirement that 30 day payment terms (for undisputed invoices) to be 
included in public contracts and passed down the supply chain, and a 
requirement to report on late payment of invoices. If express provisions are 
not included, PCR 2015 imply specific terms into contracts. Guidance may be 
issued setting out model contract clauses.

Frameworks (Regulations 33)

The key principles relating to framework agreements under PCR 2015 are largely the 
same as those set out in PCR 2006 although there is additional clarification in places 
to further emphasise the need for transparency. 

PCR 2015 introduce a new concept of a “hybrid” call off process which provides for 
part direct award, part mini competition. For frameworks incorporating this approach 
to call off’s, a contracting authority is required to set out in the procurement 
documents how the choice will be made (on objective crtieria) between a direct 
award and a mini competition and specify which terms may be subject to reopening 
of competition. PCR 2015 also indicate that this approach could be lot specific, ie it 
does not have to apply across all lots within a framework.

Central Purchasing Bodies (Regulation 37) 

Contracting authorities may acquire supplies or services, or both, from a central 
purchasing body in respect of activities conducted on a permanent basis in one of 
the following forms: (a) the acquisition of supplies or services, or both, intended for 
contracting authorities; (b) the award of public contracts or the conclusion of 

Page 62



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

7

framework agreements for works, supplies or services intended for contracting 
authorities. A contracting authority will remain responsible for compliance with PCR 
2015 in certain circumstances, eg in running a call off under a framework established 
by a central purchasing body.

Joint procurements (Regulation 38)

PCR 2015 introduce new provisions to clarify procurements being carried out jointly 

and means contracting authorities may be responsible for complying with PCR 2015 

even if they are not conducting the tender process themselves. Clarity of each 

contracting authority’s responsibilities is therefore needed at the outset: 
• Entirely joint procurement means joint responsibility for fulfilling obligations 

even if one contracting authority manages the procurement process on 
behalf of another contracting authority. 

• However, where discrete parts of the procurement process are not carried 
out jointly each party has sole responsibility for fulfilling obligations under 
PCR 2015 for their relevant part although they will still have joint 
responsibility for parts carried out jointly.

Pre-procurement market engagement (Regulations 40 and 41)

PCR 2015 permit soft market testing provided this does not distort competition and is 
transparent and non-discriminatory. The UK Government actively encourages the 
use of soft market testing to deliver more effective and efficient procurement 
processes. 

Where organisations have been involved at pre-procurement stage (whether in soft 
market testing or otherwise, eg incumbents), a contracting authority must ensure that 
there is a level playing field when the tender process starts such as providing 
information which has been made available at pre-procurement stage. 

Bidders may be excluded from the procurement in circumstances where their prior 
involvement would distort competition (and there are no  other means of ensuring 
equal treatment which can be applied).

Variants (Regulation 45)

Contracting authorities may now require as well as permit bidders to submit variants 
(and must set out the minimum requirements they must meet). 

Contracting authorities may specify that a variant can only be submitted if a standard 
bid is submitted or can allow just variants but this must be clear in the procurement 
documents. 

Page 63



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

8

PCR 2015 confirms that contracting authorities must ensure that the award criteria 
can be applied to both non-variant and variant tenders by means of ensuring equal 
treatment which can be applied).

Lots (Regulation 46) 

PCR 2015 introduces a change in emphasis in relation to lots to encourage SMEs. 

As before, contracting authorities may decide to award a contract in the form of 
separate lots and may determine the size and subject-matter of such lots. 

Contracting authorities may, even where tenders may be submitted for several or all 
lots, limit the number of lots that may be awarded to one tenderer, provided that the 
maximum number of lots per tenderer is stated in the contract notice or (if a PIN is 
used as a call for competition) in the invitation to confirm interest. Authorities must 
set out how this will work in practice including the objective criteria which will 
determine which lots will be awarded where the application of the award criteria 
results in one tenderer being awarded more than one lot. 

The UK has not mandated the use of lots, as permitted under the Public Contracts 
Directive but if contracting authorities decide not to divide an opportunity into 
separate lots, it must include the reasons for this in the Regulation 84 report. 

Prior Information Notices (Regulation 48)

There is no longer a mandatory requirement for a contracting authority to publish a 
PIN above a certain threshold. 

Notices (Regulations 48 to 52)

Contract award notice timescales have been reduced to 30 days from 48 days.

Bidder feedback (Regulation 55)

 
PCR 2015 continue to require contracting authorities to inform each candidate and 
tenderer (as soon as possible) of decisions reached concerning the conclusion of a 
framework agreement, the award of a contract or admittance to a dynamic 
purchasing system. 

An economic operator’s right to request information remains (and a response must 
be provided quickly and no later than 15 days of a request) and the majority of this 
information would be provided in any event in the standstill letter. The new provisions 
also include a new right to request details of the conduct and progress of 
negotiations and dialogue with bidders which is in addition to information made 
available in the standstill letter.

Electronic Auctions/catalogues (Regulations 36 and 36)

Page 64



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

9

The use of e-auctions has been retained under PCR 2015, albeit some changes 
have been introduced to improve transparency. 

Eligibility and Selection (Regulation 56 to 64)  

PCR 2015 recognise “compliance checks” requiring contracting authorities to verify 
that bids submitted comply with the rules and requirements applicable to the tender 
as well as checking whether grounds for exclusion apply and selection criteria is 
satisfied. 

 A contracting authority is also now expressly entitled to clarify errors, missing or 
incomplete bids but we would urge caution here as PCR 2015 require that any such 
request is made in full compliance with the principles of equal treatment and 
transparency. 

PCR 2015 also confirm that checking a tenderer remains “eligible to tender” is an 
ongoing obligation, ie contracting authorities must continue to verify that there are no 
exclusion grounds or changes in circumstances which would mean an operator fails 
to meet selection criteria. 

A number of changes are included in relation to the mandatory and discretionary 
grounds for exclusion including additional discretionary grounds where conflicts 
cannot be remedied or where persistent poor performance has led to contract 
termination or similar sanctions. Bidders are allowed to provide evidence to 
demonstrate reliability despite the existence of grounds for exclusion. PCR 2015 also 
provide a duration for the exclusion – 3 years from the date of conviction for 
mandatory grounds and 5 years from the date of the event for discretionary grounds. 

PCR 2015 also contains a number of changes to the selection criteria, including: 

• minimum annual turnover: (i) no more than 2 x estimated contract value, 
unless justified; (ii) applies per lot but can be combined if awarded more 
than one lot (note there are specific rules for frameworks and DPS). 

• technical experience: new supply chain management and tracking 
systems that the operator will apply when performing the contract. 

• education and qualifications if not to be used as award criteria. 

• a requirement to accept the European Single Procurement Document 
(ESPD) which is a self declaration, as preliminary evidence that there are 
no grounds for exclusion and that the selection criteria is satisfied. An 
authority can ask for supporting documents referred to in the ESPD at any 
time and must require the winner to provide up to date information to 
confirm this. 

• requirements on having recourse to e-Certis. 

• relying on other entities – contracting authorities may require joint liability 
(if an economic operator is relying on other entities for educational/ 
professional purposes, that entity must be performing the relevant parts, 
must be checked for eligibility and there may be requirement to replace 
them in certain circumstances).

Page 65



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

10

Evaluation (Regulations 67 and 68)

Contracting authorities are required to base the award of public contracts on the 
most economically advantageous tender assessed from the point of view of the 
contracting authority. This may be on the basis of price or cost and may include the 
“best price-quality ratio”. 

 Life-cycle costing is also permitted and rules are set out on how to work out life-
cycle costing etc in Regulation 68. The approach must be disclosed to bidders. 

Award criteria must still be linked to the subject matter of the contract but may also 
include “organisation, qualification and experience of staff assigned to performing the 
contract” where the quality of the staff assigned can have a significant impact on the 
level of performance of the contract. Care must be taken not to duplicate any “staff” 
related assessment undertaken at pre-qualification stage. 

Abnormally Low Tenders (Regulation 69) 

A contracting authority is now obliged to seek reasons from bidders to explain prices 
and costs which appear to be abnormally low in relation to the works, supplies or 
services. Under PCR 2006, a contracting authority was only obliged to investigate if 
it was considering excluding a tenderer.

Termination (Regulation 73) 

Contracting authorities shall ensure that every public contract which they award 
contains provisions enabling the contracting authority to terminate the contract where 
(i) the contract has been subject to a substantial modification which would have 
required a new procurement procedure; (ii) the contractor has, at the time of contract 
award, been in one of the situations referred to in certain of the mandatory grounds 
for exclusion; or (iii) the contract should not have been awarded to the contractor in 
view of a serious infringement of the obligations under the Treaties and the Public 
Contracts Directive (that has been declared by the Court of Justice of the European 
Union in a procedure under Article 258 of TFEU). Contracting authorities will need to 
consider how to capture this right to terminate, how this is treated (eg what kind of 
default this will be) and the consequences of exiting the contract including any 
compensation payable. The Cabinet Office will be issuing model clauses and 
guidance on this. 

To the extent that a public contract does not contain provisions enabling the 
contracting authority to terminate the contract on any of the grounds mentioned 
above, such a termination term shall be implied into the contract. 

Individual Reports (Regulation 84) 

Contracting authorities are required to create and keep a written report on each 
contract, framework agreement and dynamic purchasing system entered into under 
PCR 2015. 

Page 66



Report on the Changes Introduced by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

11

The information recorded must include information relating to the following (amongst 
other): 

• the qualification and selection of tenderers and the award; 

• where applicable, why electronic procurement is not used; 

• the use of the negotiated procedure without a call for competition; 

• how conflicts of interest have been managed; and 

• the non-application of the regulations in certain circumstances. 

In addition to the above, there is a general obligation on contracting authorities to 
document the progress of all procurement procedures including ensuring sufficient 
information is kept to justify decisions such as communications with economic 
operators and internal deliberations, preparation of procurement documents, any 
dialogue and negotiation, selection and award. Documentation must be kept for 
three years from the award of the contract.

Dominique Adcock
Solicitor
Trafford Borough Council

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3c

1

STaR Procurement Joint Committee – 13 April 2015

Activity and Business Improvement Plan Report

Jan - Mar 2015

Summary and recommendation

This report provides an overview of the key activities of STaR Procurement for the quarter Jan – 
Mar 2015. Specifically, it contains an overview of STaR’ activity in our first year of operation as 
well as a more comprehensive update on activity in relation to Business Improvement. 

Joint Committee Members are requested to note the report.

Overview

STaR is a ground breaking shared service. Developing a team of experienced officers into a 
wholly shared service for the first time, without any network of experience in the North West, 
was always going to be a challenge in the first years.   

The focus in year one has been on operational delivery and responding to customer needs.  This 
has meant that the service has been largely reactive.  This work has been delivered in the 
context of an environment where key foundations of the service such as resources, CPRs, 
documentation and process were not fully available or established.  Further, key enablers such 
as ICT and SpendPro were not as accessible as would have been hoped.  

Despite these constraints and through the hard work and commitment of the STaR team, 
significant key achievements have been delivered in our first year of operation:

•             Improved compliance position and reduced risk for all Councils

•             The waiver process for all three councils is better controlled 

•             CPRs are almost complete and will be considered by the Joint Committee as scheduled 
on 13th April 2014

•             Total savings delivered in excess of £2m

•             The savings programme for 2015/16 is looking very positive  

•             Recruiting the right people who are able to deliver change and improved services for 
clients

Page 69

Agenda Item 4c



Agenda Item 3c

2

•             A training plan has been established which addresses the generic needs of the team as 
well as person specific requirements

•             Fulfilling the requirement of the Transparency Code 2015

•             The team have created relationships across all three Councils which are positive overall 
and provide a good foundation to build upon

•             Customer and supplier satisfaction questionnaires have now been circulated

•             Engagement with local supply chains has been positive

•             Delivery of complex high value and high risk Competitive Dialogue process for Trafford

•             Business Improvement Plan is now in place and a Standards Group and Communications 
Group are established to drive through the activity needed

•             A balanced scorecard has been developed to allow us to report performance to the Joint 
Committee on a quarterly basis.  

•             DoP was part of the working group which developed the GM Social Value Framework

•             DoP is a member of the CIPFA Joint Commissioning Panel 

•             DoP is the Deputy Chair of the INetwork Connected Procurement Group which facilitates 
collaborative learning and working across the whole of the North West

•             The outturn forecast for 2014/15 demonstrates an underspend and £105,000 will be 
earmarked as reserve

Business Improvement in STaR

To help shape and drive forward the business improvement agenda, it has been proposed and 
agreed that a Business Improvement Plan (BIP) should be adopted and monitored by the STaR 
Board. The BIP will drive system development and behaviours across the whole of STaR, however 
it will be ‘owned’ and driven by the STaR senior management team and will be a standing item 
on the SMT agenda. 

The plan is based upon four principle inter-related areas:

Improving Service Delivery

 Ensuring compliance
 Delivering savings
 Delivering social value

Enhancing Customer/Supplier Experience

Page 70



Agenda Item 3c

3

 Measure and improve customer satisfaction
 Build deeper relationships with customers/suppliers
 Build customer base

Building Organisational Capacity 

 Increase productivity
 Develop quality systems
 Anticipate demand / build flexibility
 Create a seamless and joined-up front end of the service

Develop and Support Staff

 Happy and content workforce
 Low staff turnover
 Supportive and appropriate training
 Well informed and engaged workforce

To address these areas three internal working groups have been established to focus on key but 
overlapping issues.

All of the Groups are chaired and coordinated by the Business Improvement Manager and have a 
cross sectional representation across both the procurement categories and grades of post within 
the STaR team. All STaR team members are involved in at least one group. The groups meet 
fortnightly and members develop work packages between meetings. The STaR monthly team 
meeting currently receives reports and updates from the individual groups.

The three groups are:

The Standards Group

This work will be based on that which has already been undertaken to integrate the Contract 
Procedure Rules and the development of the draft Procurement Handbook. 

Workflow diagrams will be developed that will chart the critical decision making points in various 
external and internal procurement processes and bring about consistency of approach across the 
service. These will also map the critical points where action may be required to unblock barriers 
or where additional resources will be required. They will also be supplemented by the provision 
of consistent and standardised documentation and data capture protocols.

Essential to ensuring that these workflow systems operate effectively will be the establishment 
of a strong central filing system for key files and templates.

Training will also be required for all staff members to understand the agreed workflows, 
processes and documentation. Once the various elements are in place the Standards Group will 

Page 71



Agenda Item 3c

4

become in effect a Continuous Improvement Group that will be required to monitor the 
implementation and take action when practice need to change.

The priority for the standards work will be to develop an interactive STaR ‘procurement manual’ 
that will guide service users through the procurement process. The ‘Manual’ will be available on 
the Councils’ intranet, and once it is established, STaR’s own website.

Currently the following processes are being developed and tested through the work of this 
group:

1. Procurement Process (As Is & To Be?) 
2. Formalisation of a Non-Compliant Contract (No Contract in Place)
3. Procurement Initiation Document (PID) Flow
4. Issue Identification, Notification & Resolution
5. Contract ‘On Hold’
6. Managing ‘Scope Creep’
7. Care home Placement
8. Contract Management

Additionally, to support the development of manuals and workflow guidance, work will begin to 
investigate the potential of utilising e-learning packages designed to support commissioners and 
build understanding and competence in the procurement process. 

The Customer/Supplier Care Group

There is need for a customer care policy and procedures to be developed. A baseline 
questionnaire survey of the existing customer/supplier base is being undertaken and this will be 
done as part of a consultation exercise on a draft Customer Service Charter.

Satisfaction surveys will then be routinely undertaken at the completion of procurement 
exercises.

The Customer Service Group is actively considering the procedures that will need to be 
developed to support the policy and also develop a complaints and compliments procedure.

In the medium-term STaR will look to build a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system 
to ensure consistent and up to date information is available to support engagement with both 
customers and suppliers. It is understood that work is already underway within Trafford MBC to 
develop a Council wide CRM that STaR may be able to utilise.

The Communications Group

A communications group has been established to oversee and review action on both external 
and internal communications.

Page 72



Agenda Item 3c

5

In terms of public facing communications key issues include the development of an effective 
brand including a logo. The development of a website with suitable content including contacts, 
key policies, case studies, videos, ‘thought leadership’ editorial and market placement material. 
Consideration will also be given to developing a social media presence – particularly on Twitter. 

Through an existing Trafford MBC framework ‘JASK’, a graphic design consultancy, has been 
engaged to develop a brand image for STaR that reflects the mission and values of the 
organisation going forward. This is key to many other aspects of STaR’s communication strategy 
and will determine the nature of our publicity and promotional materials, including the style of 
the STaR website.

Initial designs will be delivered after Easter 2015 and through an inclusive process of 
consultation and review the nature of the STaR logo will be developed.

The future development of the STaR service will completely rely upon its reputation and 
credibility. To build this profile we will set targets to achieve appropriate quality systems status 
such as iso 9001 as well as recognised awards in the public sector and local authority arenas.

Internal communications will also be reviewed to consider the flows of information through the 
team and in particular consider the role of the current team meetings, SMT, category team 
meetings and other periodic meetings to ensure that there is effective connection and 
communication across the internal network.

The interface between the STaR team and the STaR board will also need to be explored and 
developed through the work of the Communications Group to enable a deeper understanding 
and relationship between executive and non-executive functions of the organisation.   

Staff Development

Whilst there is not a specific working group that has been established to consider staff 
development issues, this will form a significant and constant element of the BIP.

Early indications show that staff morale could be improved as staff struggle to settle in a newly 
formed organisation. Much of this can be attributed to the necessary pressure to perform from 
partner expectation combined with uncertainty through the lack of definitive documented 
systems and the incomplete integration of the three founder local authority services. This is not 
universal however and I believe that there are some useful building blocks to effect the 
necessary change within the team culture.

Following the completion of the staff survey, the STaR team has engaged in a team development 
programme that will build better teamwork and communications. The work initiated through the 
various BIP working groups has also begun to assist in developing a stronger and better 
supported team working.

Page 73



Agenda Item 3c

6

Trafford MBC holds a competence framework for the development of staff. STaR will develop an 
approach to understand how this framework can be best applied and operated within the STaR 
Team. Competence frameworks can offer useful mechanisms to develop staff and understand 
their training needs and SMT members will be working on STaR can use the Personal 
Development Review procedures and the competence framework to provide a consistent 
approach to staff development that is recognised as excellent.

From the work undertaken in the other workgroups, training needs will be identified and an 
integrated training programme will be developed.

Page 74



1

Item 4 Balanced Scorecard and Performance Metrics

Compliance 30 %

 Number of contracts in the work 
plan awarded without a successful 
legal challenge against the total 
number of contracts in the work 
plan

 Harmonisation of Contract 
Procedure Rules

Finance 40 %

 Savings achieved 

 Value of saving  proposals 
with fully signed PIDs

Social Value 15%

 To improve the % of overall spend 
that is spent in the Local area 
when compared against the 
baseline, (based on the average 
between the three authorities).

 To improve the % of overall spend 
that is spent with SME’s when 
compared against the baseline 
(based on the average between 
the three authorities).

 To deliver and report on the 
number of local employment 
opportunities created as defined in 
GMCA Social Value Policy

 % of procurement activities 
resulting in SV outcomes.

Performance 15 %

 %  satisfaction rating to improve 
against base line.  Ratings to be 
good or above on completed 
customer satisfaction surveys.

 %  satisfaction rating to improve 
against base line.  Ratings to be 
good or above on completed 
supplier satisfaction surveys.

 % PID objectives achieved

Page 75

Agenda Item 5



2

Compliance (Weighting 30%)

The metric is the aspect of STaR’s activities regarding compliance which can be 
measured and has a positive impact on the performance of the team as a whole. 

Ref Metric Aim / Target Achievement at 
20.3.15

i Harmonised Contract 
Procedure Rules to be 
recommended for approval by 
Joint Committee

April 2015 On schedule

C1 Number of contracts in the 
work plan awarded without a 
successful legal challenge 
against the total number of 
contracts in the Work Plan 

100%  100%

(188 contracts 
awarded since April 
2014)

Financial (Weighting 40%)

The following metrics will be used for the finance section of the balanced scorecard

 F1 Savings achieved across STaR Councils
 F2 Value of savings with a fully signed off Procurement Initiation Document 

(PIDs)

The savings achieved represent an aggregate figure and will be produced in a  
graphical format identifying progress on a monthly basis.  The values listed on the 
report will include all elements of savings achieved via the procurement process.  
This will include the following savings classifications:

 Cashable, recurring budget savings
 Cashable one off savings
 Non cashable savings i
 Capital savings

The second measure gives us an opportunity to identify the savings pipeline. It will 
measure the value of savings initiatives which have been agreed by clients and fully 
“signed off” via a Procurement Initiation Document (PID).  PID sign off will be 
measured when all participants in the process, STaR, Budget Holder (Client) and 
Finance have signed up to the savings delivery.  This is classified as “green” on the 
RAG rating we will use.  

Page 76



3

Reporting the PID status provides us with a higher level of confidence that clients 
and finance are aware of and in agreement with the savings proposals.

Again, this will be reported to the Joint Committee on the basis of aggregate values 
for all three Councils.  
The second measure will be mapped on the same graph as F1 so that the 
relationshipbetween the two values are visible.

See separate Appendix One which represents savings delivery for 2014/2015. 
reports for detail.

Social Value (Weighting 15%)

The following metrics will form the Social Value (SV) quadrant of the STaR Balanced 
Scorecard.

 To improve the % of overall spend that is spent in the Local area when 
compared against the baseline, (based on the average between the three 
authorities)

 To improve the % of overall spend that is spent with SME’s  when compared against 
the baseline (based on the average between the three authorities).To increase the 
% of overall spend that is spent in the Local area 

 To deliver local employment opportunities 
 % procurement activities resulting in social value outcomes

(i). Local Spend (S1)

SpendPro will be used as the tool to deliver these numbers.  The baseline position 
for financial year 2014/2015 will be published at the next Joint Committee and will be 
used as a baseline going forwards.  The indicator requires an improvement against 
this baseline and as our intelligence regarding this indicator improves we can begin 
to set targets accordingly.

(ii) Spend with SME’s  (S2)

SpendPro will be used as the tool to deliver these numbers.  Obtaining reliable SME 
information has proven challenging due to the lack of an accessible and reference-able 
master data source of SME classifications. For example, we have been able to retrieve an 
SME indicator for only 18% of spend for STaR spend in 2013-14. SpendPro uses a 3rd party 
data provider (MINT UK) to provide these statistics. 

The data provider has now released a new SME indicator (a simple yes or no) which 
appears to have a much broader coverage of our supplier data-set (perhaps up to 40%-
50%).  The SpendPro team is currently evaluating this and will look to apply this to the 
current data-set to allow further analysis.

The baseline position for financial year 2014/2015 will be published at the next Joint 
Committee and will be used as a baseline going forwards.  The indicator requires an 

Page 77



4

improvement against this baseline and as our intelligence regarding this indicator 
improves we can begin to set targets accordingly.

(iii)Local Employment Opportunities (S3) 

The overall outcome will be to get more local people in work.  We will aim to do this by 
looking to increase the number of local employment opportunities through the procurement 
process.  One of the aims of the GMCA Social Value Policy is to “Promote Employment & 
Economic Sustainability” with an outcome of getting more local people in work.

The policy suggests this can be measured by using the following:-
 Create x number of new jobs in the local economy.
 Create x number of traineeships (including apprenticeships) for local residents.
 Provide x number of days of meaningful work experience for local residents.
 Support x number of people back to work by providing career mentoring for job 

clubs, including mock interviews, CV advice, and careers guidance.
 Supporting young people into work by delivering employability support (e.g. CV 

advice, mock interviews, careers guidance) to x number of school and college 
students.

 Employ x number of ex-offenders (or other group of people who typically face 
additional challenges in competing in the labour market.

Each one of the above achieved will be counted as an employment opportunity.  This 
is a new measure and there is previously no historic data to create a baseline.

(iv) % of Procurement Activities Resulting in a Social Value Outcome (S4)

A measure will be established to understand the % of procurement activities where there is a 
social value outcome.
We will use the Procurement Initiation Document (PID) as the reporting tool to identify the 
measure and we will then compare against the total number of procurement activities on the 
work plan.
. 
This is a new measure and there is previously no historic data to create a baseline.

Ref Metric Aim / Target Achievement at 
20.3.15

S1 To improve the % of overall 
spend that is spent in the Local 
area when compared against the 
baseline, (based on the average 
between the three authorities

Pending Baseline To be established

S2 To improve the % of overall 
spend that is spent with SME’s  
when compared against the 
baseline (based on the average 
between the three authorities).

Pending baseline To be established

S3 To report on the number of local 
employment opportunities 
created as defined in GMCA 

To be established New metric, no 
historical data but will 
be reported for 

Page 78



5

Social Value Policy. 2015/2016

S4 % of procurement activities 
resulting in SV outcomes.

50% New metric, no 
historical data but will 
be reported for 
2015/2016

Performance Weighting 30%)

The following metrics will form the Service Delivery and Customer Satisfaction 
Quadrant of the STaR Balance Scorecard.

 %  satisfaction rating to improve against base line.  Ratings to be good or 
above on completed customer satisfaction surveys.

 %  satisfaction rating to improve against base line.  Ratings to be good or 
above on completed supplier satisfaction surveys.

 % PID objectives achieved

(i) Customer Satisfaction Surveys (P1)

A customer satisfaction questionnaire was circulated in early March which focussed 
on two principal areas of enquiry:
 

 Communication issues, responsiveness and customer awareness of the 
service offer. 

 The second relates to the quality of the service itself in terms of the timeliness, 
quality of engagement and satisfaction with the outcome.

Responses to the questions will be scored against a four point scale measuring the 
satisfaction with the element of the service.

A metric will be developed and reported based upon the overall satisfaction scoring 
achieved over each period.

(ii) Supplier Satisfaction Surveys (P2)

The supplier satisfaction surveys was also circulated and follows a similar format to 
that of the customer side. Again the questionnaire focussed on two principal areas of 
enquiry:
 

•   Communication issues, responsiveness and supplier awareness of the service 
offer. 

• The second relates to the quality of the service itself in terms of the quality of 
engagement, support and overall satisfaction with the process.

Once again responses to the questions will be scored against a four point scale 
measuring the satisfaction with the element of the service.

Page 79



6

A metric will be developed and reported based upon the overall satisfaction scoring 
achieved over each period.

(iii) PID objectives achieved (P3)

The Procurement Initiation Document (PID) will identify the expected outcomes for  
each procurement exercise. A simple report which reconciles, planned versus 
achieved objectives will be used to provide a % PID objectives achieved.

Ref Metric Aim / Target Achievement at 
20.3.15

P1 %  satisfaction rating to improve 
against base line.  Ratings to be 
good or above on completed 
customer satisfaction surveys.

Pending baseline

See note 1 

P2 %  satisfaction rating to improve 
against base line.  Ratings to be 
good or above on completed 
supplier satisfaction surveys.

Pending baseline

See note 1 

P3 % PID objectives achieved 80% New metric, no 
historical data but will 
be reported for 
2015/2016

Note 1

The baseline will be established from the surveys which are currently with clients and 
suppliers.  The baseline data will be used to set the target figures for 2015/2016

Page 80



7

Appendix One

Financial Saving achieved 2014/2015

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3a Revenue Budget Monitor Report - Period 11
	3b 2015/16 Budget
	3c Human Resources - Statistics
	3d Risk Register
	4a Harmonised Contract Procedure Rules - Recommendation for approval
	4b Public Contract Regulations 2015
	4c STaR Activity and Business Improvement Plan
	5 BALANCED SCORE CARD

